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March 31, 2012 
 
 
The Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council 
City of Richland Hills 
Richland Hills, Texas 
 
The Richland Hills City staff is pleased to submit the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report of 
the City of Richland Hills, Texas, for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2011.  The purpose of 
the report is to provide the Council, managements, staff, public and other interested parties with 
detailed information reflecting the City’s financial condition.   
 
 
THE REPORT 
 
The report satisfies Chapter 103.001 of the Texas Local Government Code requiring annual 
audits of all municipalities.  This report consists of management’s representations concerning the 
finances of the City of Richland Hills.  Consequently, management assumes full responsibility for 
the completeness and reliability of all the information presented in this report.  To provide a 
reasonable basis for making these representations, management of the City of Richland Hills has 
established a comprehensive internal control framework that is designed both to protect the 
government’s assets from loss, theft, or misuse and to compile sufficient reliable information for 
the preparation of the City of Richland Hills’ financial statements in conformity with GAAP.  
Because the cost of internal controls should not outweigh their benefits, the City of Richland Hills’ 
comprehensive framework of internal controls has been designed to provide reasonable rather 
than absolute assurance that the financial statements will be free from material misstatement.  As 
management, we assert that, to the best of our knowledge and belief, this financial report is 
complete and reliable in all material aspects.  
 
The City of Richland Hills’ financial statements have been audited by Pattillo, Brown & Hill, L.L.P., 
a firm of licensed certified public accountants.  The goal of the independent audit was to provide 
reasonable assurance that the financial statements of the City of Richland Hills for the fiscal year 
ended September 30, 2011, are free of material misstatement.  The independent audit involved 
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements; assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by 
management; and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.  The independent 
auditor concluded, based upon the audit, that there was a reasonable basis for rendering an 
unqualified opinion that the City of Richland Hills’ financial statements for the fiscal year ended 
September 30, 2011, are fairly presented in conformity with GAAP.  The independent auditor’s 
report is presented as the first component of the financial section of this report. 
 
The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report is organized into three major sections:  Introductory, 
Financial and Statistical.  The Introductory Section contains a list of principal City Officials, an 
organizational chart of the City Government, and this letter of transmittal.  The Financial Section 
includes the Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A), basic financial statements, and the 
opinion of the independent auditor and supplementary information.  The MD&A is a narrative 
introduction, overview, and analysis to accompany the basic financial statements.  This letter of 
transmittal is designed to complement and should be read in conjunction with the MD&A.  The 
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Statistical Section, through the use of tables, presents comparative economic and financial data 
to give users of the report a perspective of the City’s performance over a number of years.  
 
The Reporting Entity 
 
The City of Richland Hills, incorporated in 1950, is located in the middle of a major metropolitan 
are in north central part of the state.  The City of Richland Hills currently occupies a land area of 
3.9 square miles and serves a population of 8,132.  The City of Richland Hills is empowered to 
levy a property tax on both real and personal properties located within its boundaries.   
 
The City of Richland Hills has operated under the council-manager form of government since 
1985.  Policy-making and legislative authority are vested in a governing council consisting of the 
mayor and five other members.  The governing Council is responsible, among other things, for 
passing ordinances, adopting the budget, appointing committees, and hiring the government’s 
manager.  The government’s Manager is responsible for carrying out the policies and ordinances 
of the governing council, for overseeing the day-to-day operations of the government, and for 
appointing the heads of the various departments.  Council members serve two-year staggered 
terms with three Council members elected in odd-numbered years and the Mayor and two 
Council members elected in even-numbered years. The Mayor and Council members are elected 
from the City at large. 
 
The City of Richland Hills provides a full range of municipal services, including general 
government, public safety (police, fire, emergency medical services, and animal services), streets 
and drainage, planning and zoning, code enforcement, library, and recreational activities and 
cultural events.  Water and sanitation services are provided as a department of the City of 
Richland Hills and therefore have been included as an integral part of the City of Richland Hills’ 
financial statements.   
 
The annual budget serves as the foundation for the City of Richland Hills’ financial planning and 
control.  All departments of the City of Richland Hills are required to submit requests for 
appropriation to the government’s manager in May of each year.  The government’s manager 
uses these requests as the starting point for developing a proposed budget.  The government’s 
manager then presents this proposed budget to the Council for review by at least 60 days prior to 
October 1.  The Council is required to hold a public hearing on the proposed budget and to adopt 
a final budget by no later than September 30, the close of the City of Richland Hills’ fiscal year.  
The appropriated budget is prepared by fund, and department (e.g., police).  The government’s 
manager is authorized to transfer budgeted amounts between line items within any fund.  Any 
revisions that alter the total expenditures of any fund require special approval of the governing 
Council.  Budget-to-actual comparisons are provided in this report for each individual 
governmental fund for which an appropriated annual budget has been adopted.    For 
governmental funds, other than the general fund, with appropriated annual budgets, this 
comparison is presented in the governmental fund subsection of this report.   
 
Economic Outlook and Financial Condition 
 
The City of Richland Hills is located in Northeast Tarrant County, approximately 7 miles from 
downtown Fort Worth and approximately 30 miles from Dallas, Texas. Richland Hill’s centralized 
location provides quick access to Fort Worth, Arlington, and Dallas areas and is approximately 
fifteen miles from DFW International Airport.  The total land area is 3.9 square miles and is 98% 
developed.   
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In 2011, Richland Hill’s experienced a 5% decline in assessed taxable value due to economic 
recession and the reappraisal of the residential housing base.  The property tax base remains 
diverse with the top ten taxpayers accounting for 12.1% of the total assessed value.  Property tax 
and sales tax revenue are the City’s principal income sources. Property tax revenues account for 
39.95% of budgeted revenues and sales tax account for 29.8% of budgeted revenues for the 
general fund.  Sales tax revenue increased 12.6% from fiscal year 2010, which is indicative of an 
improving economy.  Richland Hills continues to support an aggressive marketing campaign to 
attract commercial development in the City.  New commercial projects in 2011 include Auto-Zone, 
an auto parts retailer, and Bartos Industries, HVAC retailer.   
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OTHER INFORMATION 
 
Independent Audit 
 
Article XII, Section 12.06 of the City Charter requires an annual audit by independent certified 
public accountants.  The accounting firm of Pattillo, Brown & Hill, L.L.P. was selected by the City 
Council.  The audit report will be available for public inspection and the original copy will be kept 
as a permanent record of the City. 
 
Certificate of Achievement 
 
The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded 
a Certificate of Achievement for excellence in Financial Reporting to the City of Richland Hills for 
its comprehensive annual financial report for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2010.  In order 
to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a government must publish an easily readable and 
efficiently organized comprehensive annual financial report.  This report must satisfy both 
generally accepted accounting principles and applicable legal requirements. 
 
A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only.  We believe that our current 
comprehensive annual financial report continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement 
Program’s requirements and we are submitting it to the GFOA to determine its eligibility for 
another certificate. 
 
Acknowledgments 
 
The preparation of this report could not have been accomplished without the cooperation of City 
employees throughout the organization.  Sincere appreciation is also expressed to the Mayor and 
City Council for their continued interest and support in the conduct of the financial operations of 
the City in a responsible and progressive manner. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 
 
 
To the Honorable Mayor and 
   Members of City Council 
City of Richland Hills, Texas 
 
 
 We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the 
business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of 
Richland Hills, Texas (the “City”) as of and for the year ended September 30, 2011, which collectively 
comprise the City’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.  These financial 
statements are the responsibility of the City of Richland Hills, Texas’ management.  Our responsibility 
is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. 
 
 We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.  Those standards require that we plan 
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of 
material misstatement.  An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts 
and disclosures in the financial statements.  An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles 
used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial 
statement presentation.  We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions. 
 
 In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, 
the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major 
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Richland Hills, Texas, as of 
September 30, 2011, and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows, where applicable, 
thereof for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America. 
 
 In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated March 
31, 2012, on our consideration of the City’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of 
its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other 
matters.  The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over 
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the 
internal control over financial reporting or on compliance.  That report is an integral part of an audit 
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards, and should be considered in conjunction 
with this report in considering the results of our audit. 
 
 
 
 
 

1 
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Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis and budgetary comparison information on pages 3 through 16 
and pages 58 through 60, be presented to supplement the basic financial statements.  Such information, 
although not part of the basic financial statements, is required by Governmental Accounting Standards 
Board, who considers it to be an essential part of the financial statements for placing the basic financial 
statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context.  We have applied certain 
limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about 
the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with 
management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we 
obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements.  We do not express an opinion or provide any 
assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence 
to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

 
 Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that 
collectively comprise the City of Richland Hills, Texas’ basic financial statements as a whole.  The 
accompanying financial information listed as supplemental information in the table of contents is 
presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the financial statements.  The 
supplemental information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relate directly 
to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements.  The information 
has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain 
additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying 
accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements 
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in 
the United States of America.  In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in 
relation to the financial statements as a whole.   

 
 
 
March 31, 2012 
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
 
 
 
As management of  t he C ity of  Richland Hills, Texas, we o ffer re aders of t he C ity o f Richland Hills’ 
financial s tatements th is narrative overview and analysis o f the f inancial activities o f the C ity for the 
fiscal year ended September 30, 2011.  We encourage readers to consider the information presented here 
in conjunction with additional information that we have furnished in our letter of transmittal, which can 
be found in the introductory section of this report.  
 
 
Financial Highlights  
 

• The as sets o f the C ity exceeded its  liabilities a t the c lose o f th e mo st r ecent f iscal 
year by $20,349,465 (net assets) compared to $19,862,212 for the prior year.  Of this 
amount, $3,735,637 represents unrestricted net a ssets that may be used to meet the 
City’s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.   
 

• The City’s total net assets increased by $753,353.  The City’s governmental activities 
net assets decreased by $556,158 and the business-type activities net assets increased 
by $1,309,511. 
 

• As of  t he c lose of  t he c urrent year, t he C ity o f R ichland Hills’ governmental funds 
reported c ombined e nding f und ba lances of  $3,965,365 compared t o $3,983,133 for 
the p rior year.  A pproximately $1,496,041 is av ailable for s pending at  t he C ity’s 
discretion (unassigned fund balance). 
 

• At t he e nd of  t he c urrent year, un assigned f und ba lance f or the General F und was 
$1,496,041, or 28% of total General Fund expenditures. 
 

 
Overview of the Financial Statements  
 
This di scussion a nd a nalysis a re i ntended t o s erve a s a n i ntroduction t o t he C ity’s b asic f inancial 
statements.  T he C ity’s basic f inancial s tatements co mprise t hree co mponents:  1 ) government-wide 
financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements.  This report 
also contains other supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements themselves. 
 
Government-wide financial statements.  T he g overnment-wide f inancial s tatements ar e d esigned t o 
provide r eaders w ith a  br oad ove rview o f the C ity’s finances, in  a  manner s imilar to  a  p rivate-sector 
business.   
 
The statement of net assets presents i nformation on a ll of  the C ity’s assets a nd lia bilities, w ith th e 
difference between the two reported as net assets.  O ver time, increases or decreases in net assets may 
serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the City is improving or deteriorating.  
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The statement of activities presents i nformation s howing ho w t he C ity’s net a ssets c hanged d uring t he 
most recent year.  All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the 
change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows.  Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in 
this statement for some items that will result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes 
and fees). 
 
Both o f t he government-wide f inancial s tatements d istinguish f unctions o f th e C ity th at a re p rincipally 
supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other functions that are 
intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-type 
activities).  T he governmental a ctivities o f th e C ity i nclude general government, le gislative, mu nicipal 
court, police, f ire and ambulance, code e nforcement, a nimal c ontrol, clean city, s treets a nd highways, 
library, c ommunity center, p arks and b eautification a nd e conomic de velopment.  T he bus iness-type 
activities of  t he C ity i nclude water pr oduction and di stribution, s ewer collection a nd tr eatment a nd 
drainage utility. 
 
The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 17 through 19 of this report. 
 
Fund Financial Statements.  A  fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control 
over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives.  The City, like other state 
and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related 
legal requirements.  All of the funds of the City can be divided into two categories:  governmental funds 
and proprietary funds. 
   
Governmental funds.  Governmental f unds a re us ed t o a ccount f or e ssentially t he s ame f unctions 
reported as  governmental act ivities i n t he g overnment-wide f inancial s tatements.  U nlike t he 
government-wide financial statements, however, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-
term i nflows and out flows of  s pendable r esources, as w ell a s on  ba lances of  s pendable resources 
available at the end of  the f iscal year.  S uch information may be useful in evaluating the City’s near-
term financing requirements. 
 
Because t he focus of  governmental f unds i s n arrower t han t hat of  t he g overnment-wide f inancial 
statements, i t i s us eful to c ompare t he i nformation pr esented f or governmental f unds with s imilar 
information pr esented f or governmental a ctivities i n t he government-wide f inancial s tatements.  B y 
doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the government’s near-term financing 
decisions.  Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues, 
expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate the comparison between 
governmental funds and governmental activities. 
 
The C ity m aintains 1 2 individual g overnmental f unds.  Information i s pr esented s eparately i n t he 
governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and 
changes in fund balances for the General Fund, which is considered a major fund.  Data from the other 
governmental funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation.  Individual fund data for each 
of these nonmajor governmental funds is provided in the form of combining statements elsewhere in this 
report. 
 
The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 20 through 23 of this report. 
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Proprietary funds.  Proprietary f unds c an be  further c lassified i nto t wo di fferent t ypes o f f unds.  
Enterprise F unds a re us ed t o r eport t he s ame f unctions pr esented a s bus iness-type a ctivities i n t he 
government-wide f inancial s tatements.  T he C ity uses E nterprise F unds to acco unt for i ts w ater an d 
sewer operations and drainage utility operations.   
 
Proprietary f unds pr ovide t he s ame t ype o f i nformation a s t he government-wide f inancial s tatements, 
only i n m ore d etail.  The pr oprietary fund f inancial s tatements provide s eparate i nformation f or t he 
Water and Sewer Fund and Drainage Utility Fund. 
 
The proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages 24 through 27 of this report. 
 
Notes to the basic financial statements.  The notes provide additional information that is essential to a 
full unde rstanding of  t he da ta pr ovided i n t he gove rnment-wide and f unds f inancial s tatements.  The 
notes to the financial statements can be found on pages 28 through 57 of this report. 
 
Other information.  In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report 
also pr esents certain r equired s upplementary information that f urther e xplains a nd s upports t he 
information in the financial statements.  The required supplementary information can be found on pages 
58 through 60 of this report. 
 
The individual major governmental funds and combining and individual nonmajor governmental funds 
are presented immediately following the required supplementary information.  These statements can be 
found on pages 61 through 74 of this report. 
 
 
Government-wide Financial Analysis 
 
As n oted ea rlier, n et assets m ay s erve o ver t ime as  a u seful i ndicator o f a government’s financial 
position.  In the case of the City, assets exceeded liabilities by $20,349,465 as of September 30, 2011. 
  
The l argest por tion of  t he C ity’s ne t a ssets ( 74%) r eflects its  in vestment in  c apital a ssets ( e.g. la nd, 
improvements ot her t han bui ldings, bui ldings, m achinery a nd e quipment, s treets a nd c onstruction i n 
progress); l ess any r elated de bt us ed t o acquire those a ssets t hat a re s till out standing.  T he C ity uses 
these capital assets to provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future 
spending.  Although the City’s investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be 
noted that t he r esources needed to r epay this debt must be  provided f rom other sources, s ince c apital 
assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities. 
 
An a dditional por tion of  t he C ity’s n et as sets ( 8%) re presents r esources t hat ar e s ubject t o ex ternal 
restrictions on how  they may be used.  T he remaining balance of  un restricted net assets ($3,735,637) 
may be used to meet the City’s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors. 
 
At the end of the current year, the City is able to report positive balances in all three categories of net 
assets for the government as a whole, as well as for its separate governmental activities.   
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Following are summaries of the City’s statement of net assets and statement of activities. 
 
 

Condensed Statement of Net Assets 
 

2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010

Current and other assets 5,424,406$        5,377,029$        5,076,255$        4,774,756$        10,500,661$      10,151,785$      
Capital assets 9,273,044       9,628,829       11,907,033     11,782,329     21,180,077     21,411,158     

        Total assets 14,697,450     15,005,858     16,983,288     16,557,085     31,680,738     31,562,943     

Current liabilities 570,292          459,471          459,320          491,253          1,029,612       950,724          
Long-term liabilities 2,204,069       1,801,040       8,097,592       8,948,967       10,301,661     10,750,007     

        Total liabilities 2,774,361       2,260,511       8,556,912       9,440,220       11,331,273     11,700,731     

Net assets:
   Invested in capital assets,
        n et of related debt 7,815,576       8,215,829       7,255,716       6,194,852       15,071,292     14,410,681     
   Restricted 1,542,536       375,753          -                1,212,169       1,542,536       1,587,922       
   Unrestricted 2,564,977       4,153,765       1,170,660       290,156)(          3,735,637       3,863,609       
   
        Total net assets 11,923,089$      12,745,347$      8,426,376$        7,116,865$        20,349,465$      19,862,212$      

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Totals
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Changes in Net Assets 
 

2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010

Revenues:
   Program revenues:
      Charges for services 1,309,146$       1,006,141$       5,283,041$       4,004,950$       6,592,187$       5,011,091$       
      Operating grants  
         and contributions 268,290         230,056         -               -               268,290         230,056         
      Capital grants  
         and contributions 393,993         226,239         -               -               393,993         226,239         
   General revenues:
      Property taxes 2,197,570      2,119,563      -               -               2,197,570      2,119,563      
      Sales taxes 2,593,770      2,210,327      
      Franchise taxes 509,015         480,222         -               -               509,015         480,222         
      Hotel occupancy taxes 152,597         121,561         -               -               152,597         121,561         
      Investment earnings 3,806             3,925             6,347             3,375             10,153           7,300             
      Miscellaneous 97,145           151,306         5,728             -               102,873         151,306         
      Transfers 300,788)(         16,198)(           300,788         16,198           -               -               

            T otal revenues 7,224,544      6,533,142      5,595,904      4,024,523      12,820,448    10,557,665    

Expenses:
   General government 452,544         409,627         -               -               452,544         409,627         
   Legislative -               76,361           -               76,361           
   Municipal court -               217,429         -               217,429         
   Police -               2,513,129      -               2,513,129      
   Traffic safety -               386,093         -               386,093         
   Fire and ambulance -               1,708,179      -               1,708,179      
   Code enforcement -               270,688         -               270,688         
   Animal control -               97,350           -               97,350           
   Keep Richland Hills Beautiful -               20,309           -               20,309           
   Street and highways -               1,339,330      -               1,339,330      
   Library -               364,142         -               364,142         
   Community center -               46,852           -               46,852           
   Parks and beautification 21,182           26,670           -               26,670           
   Economic development -               59,261           -               -               -               59,261           
   Public safety 5,032,257      -               -               -               -               
   Public works 1,151,899      -               -               -               -               
   Culture and recreation 453,741         -               -               -               
   Community development 612,100         -               -               -               612,100         -               
   Interest on long-term debt 56,979           74,760           -               74,760           
   Water production
       and distribution -               -               1,903,193      -               1,903,193      
   Sewer collection
      and treatment -               -               2,001,652      -               2,001,652      
   Water sewer -               -               3,845,749      -               3,845,749      -               
   Drainage utility -               -               440,644         153,742         440,644         153,742         

            T otal expenses 7,780,702      7,610,180      4,286,393      4,058,587      12,067,095    11,668,767    

Increase (decrease) in net  assets 556,158)(         1,077,038)(      1,309,511      34,064)(           753,353         1,111,102)(      

Net assets, beginning 12,745,347    13,822,385    7,116,865      7,150,929      19,862,212    20,973,314    

Change in accounting estimate 266,100)(         -               -               -               266,100)(         -               

Net assets, beginning, as restated 12,479,247    13,822,385    7,116,865      7,150,929      19,596,112    20,973,314    

Net assets, ending 11,923,089$     12,745,347$     8,426,376$       7,116,865$       20,349,465$     19,862,212$     

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Totals
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Governmental activities.  Governmental activities decreased the City’s net assets by $556,158 in the 
current year co mpared with a $1,077,038 decrease i n t he p rior year.  Total g overnmental act ivities 
revenues increased $691,402 (11%) t o $7,224,544.  T otal g overnmental activities ex penses i ncreased 
$170,522 (2%) from the prior year.  Key elements of these changes are as follows: 
 

• The Capital Grant Safe Routes to School Non Infrastructure program started in 2011. 
Total expenses for this program totaled $268,824. 
 

• Property t ax r evenue i ncreased due  t o a  r ate i ncrease f rom $.473042 i n 2010 t o 
$.518012 in 2011. 

 
• Franchise fees associated with electric and gas increased during 2011. 
 
• Municipal C ourt f ine r evenue i ncreased from $ 211,168 t o $257,808 ( a $46,640, or  

22% i ncrease). T his i ncrease can  b e at tributed t o an  i ncrease i n t he number o f 
citations issued during the year. 

 
• Licenses and permit revenue increased due to the issuance of gas drilling permits in 

the amount of $157,448. 
 
 
Below are two graphs summarizing governmental activities revenues and expenses: 
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Business-type activities.  Business-type activities increased the City’s net assets by $1,309,511 in the 
current year co mpared t o a d ecrease i n n et as sets o f $34,064 in t he p rior year.  T he bus iness-type 
activities t otal r evenues i ncreased $1,571,381 (39%) t o $5,595,904, a nd t otal ex penses i ncreased 
$227,806 (6%) to $4,286,393.  Key elements of these changes are as follows: 
 

• Charges for services increased during the $1,278,091 due to an increase in water rates 
and w astewater r ates.  These r ates i ncreased 9. 99% a nd 79.5%  r espectively. T he 
increases went into effect on October 1, 2010. 
 

• The f inal payment for the Fort Worth Water Department payment p lan was paid in  
September, 2011. 

 
• The water purchased from the City of Fort Worth, Texas increased $67,555 due to an 

increase i n w ater r ates and an  i ncrease i n t he amount o f w ater p urchased. W ater 
purchased i n 2010 t otaled 274,085,000 gallons w here t he 2011 t otal r eached 
311,825,300 gallons. 

 
• Fort Worth wastewater charges decreased from $636,353 to $338,376. Charges from 

the City of Hurst decreased from $149,123 to $87,093. 
 
• Drainage S ystem expense i ncreased d ue t o drainage s ystem m aintenance an d 

improvements and debt service payments for the 2010 debt issue. 
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Below are two graphs summarizing business-type activities revenue and expense: 
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Financial Analysis of the Government’s Funds  
 
As not ed e arlier, t he C ity uses f und a ccounting to e nsure a nd d emonstrate c ompliance w ith f inance-
related legal requirements. 
 
Governmental funds.  The focus of the City’s governmental funds is to provide information on near-
term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources.  Such information is useful in assessing the 
City’s financing requirements.  In particular, unassigned fund balance may serve as a useful measure of 
the City’s net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.  
 
At ye ar-end, t he C ity’s governmental f unds r eported c ombined e nding f und ba lances o f $3,965,365.  
$1,496,041 (38%) constitutes un assigned fund ba lance, w hich i s available f or s pending a t t he 
government’s discretion.  The remainder of fund balance is restricted or committed to indicate that it is  
not available for new spending because of external and internal restrictions on its use. 
 
The G eneral F und i s t he c hief op erating fund of t he C ity.  A t t he e nd of  t he c urrent fiscal year, 
unassigned f und b alance of  t he G eneral F und w as $1,496,041.  F und ba lance of  t he G eneral F und 
increased $251,696 compared to a decrease of $492,327 in the prior year.  K ey factors in this increase 
are as follows: 
 

• Revenues increased $575,631 (12%).  General Fund property taxes increased $75,441 
due to a $23,457,372 increase in assessed property tax values and a tax rate increase 
of $0.04497 per $100 a ssessed value.  Sales and franchise taxes increased $406,349.  
Fines an d fees r evenue increased $ 42,310 (13%) b ecause t ickets i ssued increased 
from the prior year.  Intergovernmental revenue decreased $120,648. 
  

• Expenditures only increased $27,547 (0.5%).   
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Below are two graphs summarizing governmental fund revenue and expenditures. 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 



 13 

Proprietary funds.  The C ity’s pr oprietary funds pr ovide t he s ame t ype of  i nformation f ound i n t he 
government-wide financial statements, but in more detail. 
 
Unrestricted net assets of  the Water and Sewer Fund a t the end of  the year amounted to $18,078 and 
those for t he Drainage Utility Fund amounted to $1,152,582.  T he t otal change i n net as sets for both 
funds was $1,009,832 and $299,679, respectively.  Other factors concerning the finances of these two 
funds have already been addressed in the discussion of the City’s business-type activities. 
 
General Fund Budgetary Highlights 
 
The City amended its General Fund budget twice.  Differences between the original budget and the final 
budget totaled a $1,601 decrease in appropriations.   
 
During the year, expenditures were more than budgetary estimates, with the general government, culture 
and recreation, community development, and capital outlay expenditures exceeding budgeted amounts. 
 
 
Capital Assets 
 
The City’s investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities as of September 
30, 2011, a mounts to $21,180,077 (net of accumulated depreciation).  T his investment in capital assets 
includes land, bui ldings, water and sewer systems, improvements other than bui ldings, machinery and 
equipment, and infrastructure. 
 
Major capital asset events during the current fiscal year included the following:  
 
Governmental Activities: 

• Concrete walking trail at Rosebud Park, $50,549 
• Started renovation of library building project, $87,620 
• 2011 Dodge Ambulance, $161,775 
• (2) 2011 Chevrolet Silverado 
• AWE Early Literacy Station, $5,700 
• School Zone Lights, $22,852 
• Fire Department Overhead Garage Doors, $15,506 
• Amkus Spreader, Power Unit, $16,643 
• Lucas 2 Chest Compression System, $14,648 
• LP15 Monitor Defib CPR, $36,266 
• Lights Sirens and Equipment for Emergency Vehicles, $8,621 

 
Business-type Activities: 

• Loader Extender, $69,500 
• 2011 Chevrolet Silverado, $22,479 
• SCAG Zero Turn Mower, $8,809 
• 2011 Dodge Ram 3500, $30,002 
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City of Richland Hills’ Capital Assets 
 (Net of Depreciation) 

 

2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010

Land 325,343$        325,343$        256,267$            256,267$          581,610$          581,610$          
Construction in progress 366,034       366,034       822,974           310,204         1,189,008      676,238         
Improvements other than buildings 191,878       191,878       152,533           157,589         344,411         349,467         
Buildings 1,102,813    1,102,813    9,634               11,978           1,112,447      1,114,791      
Water and sewer system -             -             10,445,698      10,854,884    10,445,698    10,854,884    
Machinery and equipment 1,042,891    1,042,891    219,927           191,407         1,262,818      1,234,298      
Infrastructure 6,244,085    6,244,085    -                 -               6,244,085      6,244,085      

      Total 9,273,044$     9,273,044$     11,907,033$       11,782,329$     21,180,077$     21,055,373$     

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Totals

  

Additional in formation on th e C ity’s c apital a ssets c an be f ound i n N ote F on pa ges 42 – 43 of th is 
report.  
 
 
Long-term Debt 
 

City of Richland Hills’ Outstanding Debt 
 

2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010

Certificates of obligation 580,000$        680,000$        6,360,000$     6,710,000$     6,940,000$     7,390,000$       
Tax notes 77,000         278,000       -             -             77,000         278,000         
Contractual obligation 898,000       455,000       -             -             898,000       455,000         
Capital leases payable -             -             255,780       300,521       255,780       300,521         
Revenue bonds -             -             1,340,000    1,435,000    1,340,000    1,435,000      
Note payable - wastewater
   charges -             -             -             375,152       -             375,152         

      Total 1,555,000$     1,413,000$     7,955,780$     8,820,673$     9,510,780$     10,233,673$     

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Totals

 
 
A series of contractual obligations totaling $473,000 dated February 1, 2011, were issued for the purpose 
of pa ying all or  a  por tion of  t he Issuer’s c ontractual obl igations t o be  i ncurred i n c onnection w ith t he 
acquisition or  purchase of pe rsonal pr operty, i n accordance with t he pr ovisions of  t he P ublic P roperty 
Finance Act, and to pay the costs incurred in connection with the issuance of the contractual obligation.  
The interest rate is 3.64% and the obligation matures through August 15, 2016.  Principal and interest are 
payable from ad valorem taxes.  The balance of this obligation at September 30, 2011, is $473,000. 
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The City’s outstanding debt continues to have favorable ratings.  The ratings are as follows: 
 

Moody's
Investor Standard
Service & Poor's

Combination Tax and Revenue Certificates of Obligation, Series 2001 A3

Combination Tax and Water and Sewer Revenue
   Certificates of Obligation, Series 1998 A3

Waterworks and Sewer System Revenue Bonds, Series 2002 A3

Combination Tax and Water and Sewer Revenue
   Certificates of Obligation, Series 2007 A3

Combination Tax and Water and Sewer Revenue
   Certificates of Obligation, Series 2010 AA-  

 
 
No direct funded debt limitation is imposed on the City under current state law or the City’s Home Rule 
Charter.  H owever, bond covenant requirements of the revenue bonds require that the City maintain a 
coverage ratio of 1.25 times the annual debt service.  The measure of adequacy of service liability of this 
debt is the revenue bond coverage factor (net revenues available for debt service divided by the current 
debt service requirements).  For the current fiscal year, this ratio is measured at 1.69, meaning sufficient 
net revenues were available to comply with this bond c ovenant.  C omparative data for the Water and 
Sewer Fund for the past three fiscal years is presented in the following schedule. 
 

2011 2010 2009

Gross revenues 4,552,311$   3,316,466$   3,175,814$   

Direct operating expenses 3,092,724  3,158,012  2,865,188  

Net revenue available for debt 1,459,587  158,454     310,626     

Debt service 675,146     670,610     665,050     

Debt coverage ratio 2.16             0.24             0.47             
   (Revenue available for debt service
   (divided by current year debt service)  

 
More detailed information about the City’s debt is presented in Note III.F. in the financial statements. 
 
 
Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budgets and Rates 
 
The property tax rate for the City was increased $.518,012 to $.551757 per $100 t axable value for the 
2012 f iscal year.  T he t axable as sessed v alue f or t he 2 012 f iscal year d ecreased approximately $431 
million to  $400 million.  General Fund property t ax revenue i s expected to remain approximately the 
same. 
 
The most significant budgeted increase in General Fund revenues is approximately $38,938 in fines and 
fees.   
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Total expenditures for the General Fund are budgeted to decrease by approximately $106,410 from 2011 
actual ex penditures.  T he l argest d ecrease i s due t o a s hared ex pense a greement f or d ispatch an d j ail 
services with the cities of North Richland Hills, Watauga and Haltom City. 
 
Wastewater bi lling revenues are expected to decrease $434,576 dur ing f iscal year 2011-2012.  T his is 
largely due to a 24.5% reduction in wastewater rates. 
 
 
Requests for Information 
 
This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City’s finances for all those with 
an interest in the City’s finances.  Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or 
requests for additional financial information should be addressed to the Finance Department, 3200 Diana 
Drive, Richland Hills, Texas  76118. 
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Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total

ASSETS
   Cash and cash equivalents 2,434,650$           1,014,725$            3,449,375$           
   Investments -                   1,076,270           1,076,270          
   Receivables, net of allowance for uncollectibles
      Taxes 370,364             -                    370,364             
      Accounts 563,476             728,773              1,292,249          
      Intergovernmental 809,066             -                    809,066             
   Internal balances 371,363             371,363)(              -                   
   Inventories -                   23,659                23,659               
   Restricted assets:
      Cash and cash equivalents -                   1,304,535           1,304,535          
      Investments -                   1,999,928           1,999,928          
   Internal balances due in more than one year 830,477             830,477)(              -                   
   Deferred charges 45,010               130,205              175,215             
   Capital assets:
      Land 325,343             256,267              581,610             
      Construction in progress 366,034             822,974              1,189,008          
      Buildings 2,199,302          174,022              2,373,324          
      Improvements other than buildings 1,002,066          182,792              1,184,858          
      Water and sewer systems -                   16,190,188         16,190,188        
      Machinery and equipment 3,913,366          1,166,604           5,079,970          
      Infrastructure 19,620,330        -                    19,620,330        
      Less: accumulated depreciation 18,153,397)(        6,885,814)(           25,039,211)(        

            Total capital assets 9,273,044          11,907,033         21,180,077        

            Total assets 14,697,450        16,983,288         31,680,738        

LIABILITIES 
   Accounts payable 429,787             277,580              707,367             
   Accrued liabilities 103,861             29,857                
   Unearned revenue 26,470               -                    26,470               
   Current liabilities payable from restricted assets:
      Interest payable 10,174               47,877                58,051               
      Customer deposits -                   104,006              104,006             
   Noncurrent liabilities:
      Due within one year - unrestricted 371,135             14,844                385,979             
      Due within one year - restricted -                   556,754              556,754             
      Due in more than one year 1,832,934          7,525,994           9,358,928          

         Total liabilities 2,774,361          8,556,912           11,331,273        

NET ASSETS
   Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 7,815,576          7,255,716           15,071,292        
   Restricted for:
      Debt service 116,955             -                    116,955             
      Public works 169,408             -                    169,408             
      Public safety 742,940             -                    742,940             
      Economic development 513,233             -                    513,233             
   Unrestricted 2,564,977          1,170,660           3,735,637          

            Total net assets 11,923,089$         8,426,376$            20,349,465$         

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

Primary Government

CITY OF RICHLAND HILLS, TEXAS

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2011
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Operating Capital
Charges Grants and Grants and

Functions/Programs Expenses for Services Contributions Contributions

Primary government
   Governmental activities
     General government 452,544$           279,595$           30,000$           -$              
     Public safety 5,032,257       972,419          97,660          -             
     Public works 1,151,899       34,245            97,349          393,993        
     Culture and Recreation 453,741          -               21,948          -             
     Parks and beautification 21,182            -               -             -             
     Community development 612,100          22,887            21,333          -             
      Interest on long-term debt 56,979            -               -             -             
            Total governmental activities 7,780,702       1,309,146       268,290        393,993        

   Business-type activities
      Water sewer 3,845,749       4,544,897       -             -             
      Drainage utility 440,644          738,144          -             -             
            Total business-type activities 4,286,393       5,283,041       -             -             

            Total primary government 12,067,095$      6,592,187$        268,290$         393,993$         

General revenues:
   Taxes
      Property, levied for general purposes
      Property, levied for debt service
      Sales
      Franchise
      Hotel occupancy
   Investment earnings
   Miscellaneous revenues
Transfers
            Total general revenues and transfers

Changes in net assets

Net assets, beginning

Change in accounting estimate

Net assets, beginning, as restated

Net assets, ending

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

CITY OF RICHLAND HILLS, TEXAS

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2011

Program Revenues
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Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total

142,949)$(            -$               142,949)$(           
3,962,178)(          -              3,962,178)(        

626,312)(            -              626,312)(           
431,793)(            -              431,793)(           

21,182)(              -              21,182)(             
567,880)(            -              567,880)(           

56,979)(              -              56,979)(             
5,809,273)(          -              5,809,273)(        

-                  699,148        699,148           
-                  297,500        297,500           
-                  996,648        996,648           

5,809,273)(          996,648        4,812,625)(        

1,981,407          -              1,981,407        
216,163            -              216,163           

2,593,770          -              2,593,770        
509,015            -              509,015          
152,597            -              152,597           

3,806                6,347            10,153             
97,145              5,728            102,873           

300,788)(            300,788        -                 
5,253,115          312,863        5,565,978        

556,158)(            1,309,511     753,353           

12,745,347        7,116,865     19,862,212      

266,100)(            -              266,100)(           

12,479,247        7,116,865     19,596,112      

11,923,089$         8,426,376$      20,349,465$       

Primary Government
Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Assets
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Total
Other Governmental

General Governmental Funds

ASSETS
   Cash and cash equivalents 551,449$        1,318,850$       1,870,299$       
   Investments 564,351 -              564,351         
   Receivables (net of allowances for uncollectibles)
      Taxes 334,481 35,883           370,364         
      Accounts 487,011 76,465           563,476         
      Intergovernmental 414,307 394,759         809,066         
   Due from other funds 477,738 123,255         600,993         
   Advances to other funds 830,477       -              830,477         

            Total assets 3,659,814$     1,949,212$       5,609,026$       

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
   Liabilities:
      Accounts payable 277,093$        152,694$          429,787$          
      Accrued liabilities 103,861 -              103,861         
      Due to other funds 130,850 98,780           229,630         
      Deferred revenue 821,492       58,891           880,383         
            Total liabilities 1,333,296    310,365         1,643,661      

   Fund balance:
      Nonspendable 830,477       -              830,477         
      Restricted -             1,615,422      1,615,422      
      Assigned -             23,425           23,425           
      Unassigned 1,496,041    -              1,496,041      
            Total fund balance 2,326,518    1,638,847      3,965,365      

            Total liabilities and fund balance 3,659,814$     1,949,212$       5,609,026$       

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

CITY OF RICHLAND HILLS, TEXAS

BALANCE SHEET

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2011
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Total fund balances - governmental funds 3,965,365$    

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and
therefore are reported in the governmental funds.  9,273,044   

Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable (net of unamortized costs), are
not due and payable in the current period and, therefore, are not reported in the
funds. 2,169,233)(   

Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current period expenditures
and, therefore, are deferred in the funds. 853,913      

Net assets of governmental activities 11,923,089$  

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

CITY OF RICHLAND HILLS, TEXAS

RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2011
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Total
Other Governmental

General Governmental Funds
REVENUES
   Taxes:
      General property 1,978,741$       216,163$              2,194,904$           
      Sales and use 1,904,776      913,802             2,818,578          
      Franchise 517,321         -                   517,321             
      Hotel occupancy -               152,597             152,597             
   Fines and fees 370,819         252,844             623,663             
   Licenses and permits 274,680         -                   274,680             
   Charges for services 253,010         -                   253,010             
   Intergovernmental 105,961         393,993             499,954             
   Interest income 1,600             2,206                 3,806                 
   Miscellaneous 94,479           97,349               191,828             

            Total revenues 5,501,387      2,028,954          7,530,341          

EXPENDITURES
   General government 424,446         -                   424,446             
   Public safety 3,742,173      833,508             4,575,681          
   Public works 266,913         9,338                 276,251             
   Culture and recreation 382,008         -                   382,008             
   Parks and beautification 10,378           -                   10,378               
   Community development 347,936         244,506             592,442             
   Capital outlay 149,192         1,086,608          1,235,800          
   Debt service:
      Principal -               331,000             331,000             
      Interest and fiscal charges -               83,958               83,958               

            Total expenditures 5,323,046      2,588,918          7,911,964          

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
   OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES 178,341         559,964)(             381,623)(             

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
   Proceeds from sale of capital assets 23,209           17,500               40,709               
   Proceeds from bond issuance -               473,000             473,000             
   Proceeds from insurance recovery 50,146 -                   50,146               
   Transfers in -               133,006             133,006             
   Transfers out -               333,006)(             333,006)(             

            Total other financing sources (uses) 73,355           290,500             363,855             

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES 251,696         269,464)(             17,768)(               

FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING 2,074,822      1,908,311          3,983,133          

FUND BALANCES, ENDING 2,326,518$       1,638,847$           3,965,365$           

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES 

CITY OF RICHLAND HILLS, TEXAS

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2011
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Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different because:

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds 17,768)$(       

Governmental funds report all capital outlay as expenditures. However, in
the statement of activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their
estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. This
reconciling item represents the amount by which capital outlay exceeded
depreciation in the current period. 89,685)(       

The issuance of long-termdebt (e.g., bonds, notes payable) provides current
financial resources to governmental funds, while the repayment of the
principal of long-term debt consumes the current financial resources of
governmental funds. Neither transaction, however, has any effect on net
assets. Also, governmental funds report the effect of issuance costs,
premiums, discounts, and similar items when debt is first issued, whereas
these amounts are deferred and amortized in the statement of activities.
This reconciling item represents the net effect of these differences in the
treatment of long-term debt and related items. 112,686)(     

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use
of current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as
expenditures in governmental funds. This reconciling item reflects the net
of such expenses. 263,364)(     

Some revenues in the statement of activities do not provide current financial
resources and are not included in the governmental funds.  72,655)(       

Change in net assets of governmental activities - statement of activities 556,158)$(     

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

CITY OF RICHLAND HILLS, TEXAS

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2011
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Water Drainage
and Sewer Utility Totals

ASSETS
   Current assets:
      Cash and cash equivalents 897,766$              116,959$               1,014,725$            
      Investments 376,240             700,030              1,076,270           
      Accounts receivable, net of allowances 728,773             -                    728,773              
      Due from other funds 2,482                 377,004              379,486              
      Inventory 23,659               -                    23,659                
      Restricted assets
         Cash and cash equivalents 1,092,518          212,017              1,304,535           
         Investments -                   1,999,928           1,999,928           

            Total current assets 3,121,438          3,405,938           6,527,376           

   Noncurrent assets
      Deferred charges 83,180               47,025                130,205              
      Capital assets:
         Land 207,267             49,000                256,267              
         Construction in progress -                   822,974              822,974              
         Buildings 174,022             -                    174,022              
         Improvements other than buildings 22,704 160,088              182,792              
         Waterworks and sewer system 16,190,188        -                    16,190,188         
         Equipment 1,059,743          106,861              1,166,604           
         Less: accumulated depreciation 6,803,970)(          81,844)(                6,885,814)(           

            Total noncurrent assets 10,933,134        1,104,104           12,037,238         

            Total assets 14,054,572$         4,510,042$            18,564,614$          

LIABILITIES
   Current liabilities:
      Accounts payable 214,658$              62,922$                 277,580$               
      Accrued liabilities 26,423               3,434                  29,857                
      Due to other funds 713,371             4,822                  718,193              
      Compensated absences payable 14,844               -                    14,844                
   Current liabilities payable from restricted assets:
      Current portion of long-term debt 456,754             100,000              556,754              
      Interest payable 35,990               11,887                47,877                
      Due to other funds 32,656               -                    32,656                
      Customer deposits payable 104,006             -                    104,006              

            Total current liabilities 1,598,702          183,065              1,781,767           

Noncurrent liabilities:
   Advances from other funds 830,477             -                    830,477              
   Compensated absences payable 59,375               -                    59,375                
   Net pension obligation 62,222               5,371                  67,593                
   Capital leases payable 209,026             -                    209,026              
   Revenue bonds payable 4,590,000          2,600,000           7,190,000           

            Total noncurrent liabilities 5,751,100          2,605,371           8,356,471           

            Total liabilities 7,349,802          2,788,436           10,138,238         

NET ASSETS
   Investment in capital assets, net of debt 6,686,692          569,024              7,255,716           
   Unrestricted 18,078               1,152,582           1,170,660           

            Total net assets 6,704,770$           1,721,606$            8,426,376$            

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

CITY OF RICHLAND HILLS, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2011
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Water Drainage
and Sewer Utility Totals

OPERATING REVENUES
   Charges for services 4,544,897$     738,144$        5,283,041$     
   Miscellaneous 5,728           -            5,728           
            Total operating revenues 4,550,625    738,144       5,288,769    

OPERATING EXPENSES
   Personnel services 1,119,578    147,371       1,266,949    
   Contractual services 414,473       31,449         445,922       
   Repairs and maintenance 337,092       54,197         391,289       
   Other supplies and expenses 1,221,681    97,011         1,318,692    
   Depreciation 460,460       13,663         474,123       
            Total operating expenses 3,553,284    343,691       3,896,975    

OPERATING INCOME 997,341       394,453       1,391,794    

NONOPERATING REVENUES AND EXPENSES
   Interest and investment income 1,686           4,661           6,347           
   Interest expense and fiscal charges 292,465)(       96,953)(         389,418)(       
            Total nonoperating revenues and expenses 290,779)(       92,292)(         383,071)(       

INCOME BEFORE CAPITAL  
   CONTRIBUTIONS AND TRANSFERS 706,562       302,161       1,008,723    

Capital contributions 100,788 -            100,788       
Transfers in 200,000       -            200,000       
Transfers out 2,482           2,482)(           -            

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 1,009,832  299,679      1,309,511  

NET ASSETS, BEGINNING 5,694,938    1,421,927    7,116,865    

NET ASSETS, ENDING 6,704,770$     1,721,606$     8,426,376$     

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

CITY OF RICHLAND HILLS, TEXAS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2011
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Water Drainage
and Sewer Utility Totals

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
   Cash received from customers 4,473,427$           738,144$              5,211,571$           
   Cash paid to suppliers for goods and services 1,103,211)(          143,814)(             1,247,025)(          
   Cash paid to employees for services 2,015,076)(          148,925)(             2,164,001)(          

                  Net cash provided by operating activities 1,355,140          445,405             1,800,545          

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
   Cash received from other funds 478,388             -                   478,388             
   Cash paid to other funds 48,267)(               234,853)(             283,120)(             
   Transfers from other funds 200,000             -                   200,000             

   Transfers to other funds 2,482                 2,482)(                 -                   

                  Net cash provided (used) by noncapital financing activities 632,603             237,335)(             395,268             

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
   Principal repayments on debt 814,894)(             50,000)(               864,894)(             
   Interest and fiscal charges on debt 237,096)(             140,274)(             377,370)(             

   Proceeds from sale of capital assets 14,731               512,770)(             498,039)(             

                  Net cash flows used by capital and related financing activities 1,037,259)(          703,044)(             1,740,303)(          

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
   Proceeds from sale and  maturities of investments 699,806             198,142             897,948             

   Earnings on investments 1,686                 4,661                 6,347                 

                  Net cash provided by investing activities 701,492             202,803             904,295             

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 1,651,976          292,171)(             1,359,805          

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING 338,308             621,147             959,455             

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, ENDING 1,990,284$           328,976$              2,319,260$           

RECONCILIATION OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS PER
   STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS TO THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
      Cash and cash equivalents 897,766$              116,959$              1,014,725$           

      Restricted cash 1,092,518          212,017             1,304,535          

                  Total cash and cash equivalents 1,990,284$           328,976$              2,319,260$           

CITY OF RICHLAND HILLS, TEXAS

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2011

(continued)
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Water Drainage
and Sewer Utility Totals

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO 
   NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES
      Operating income 997,341$              394,453$              1,391,794$           
      Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to net
         cash used by operating activities:
            Depreciation and amortization expense 460,460             13,663               474,123             
            Changes in assets and liabilities:
               Increase in accounts receivable 82,529)(               -                   82,529)(               
               Increase in inventory 10,669)(               -                   10,669)(               
               Decrease in accounts payable 31,161)(               33,732               2,571                 
               Increase in accrued liabilities 5,150                 1,256                 6,406                 
               Decrease in compensated absences 10,411)(               -                   10,411)(               
               Increase in customer deposits 5,331                 -                   5,331                 

               Increase in net pension obligation 21,628               2,301                 23,929               

                  Net cash provided by operating activities 1,355,140$           445,405$              1,800,545$           

NONCASH CAPITAL ACTIVITIES
   Contributions of capital assets 100,788$              -$                    100,788$              

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

CITY OF RICHLAND HILLS, TEXAS

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2011
(Continued)
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CITY OF RICHLAND HILLS, TEXAS 
 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2011 
 
 
 
 I. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 

A. Reporting Entity 
 

The C ity of  R ichland H ills i s a  m unicipal c orporation g overned b y a n elected m ayor a nd 
five-member co uncil.  The f inancial s tatements o f th e C ity o f R ichland H ills, T exas ( the 
“City”) include all governmental activities, organizations, and functions for which the City 
exercises s ignificant o versight responsibility.  T he c riteria considered in  d etermining 
governmental a ctivities to  be reported within the C ity’s f inancial s tatements included:  th e 
City’s accountability for the entity’s fiscal matters; the scope of public service of the entity; 
and the nature of any special financing relationships which may exist between the City and a 
given governmental entity.  Blended component units, although legally separate entities, are, 
in substance, part of the government’s operations and so data from these units are combined 
with data of the primary government.  The City has two blended component units.  Separate 
financial information for each can be obtained from the City. 
 
Blended Component Units 
 
The Richland Hills Development Corporation (a nonprofit development corporation formed 
under the Development Corporation Act of 1979, Texas Rev Civil Statute) was incorporated 
June 28, 1996.  The Corporation serves all citizens of the City and is governed by a Board of 
seven di rectors appointed b y the C ity Council.  Four of  t he di rectors a re Council Member 
directors an d t hree are citizen m ember di rectors.  T he pur pose o f t he Corporation is to  
promote i nfrastructure i mprovements, pa rks a nd pa rk f acilities a nd e conomic de velopment 
within th e C ity and t he S tate o f T exas in  o rder to  e liminate u nemployment and 
underemployment and to promote and encourage employment and the public welfare of, for 
and on be half of  t he C ity by d eveloping, i mplementing, pr oviding, a nd f inancing pr ojects.  
Operation of the Corporation is funded by a 0.125 percent sales tax approved by the voters.  
The Corporation is reported as a Special Revenue Fund. 
 
On November 8,  2005, citizens of  t he C ity of  R ichland Hills vot ed to c reate t he R ichland 
Hills C rime Control a nd P revention D istrict ( the “ District”) d edicated to  c rime r eduction 
programs.  The City Council serves as the Board of Directors for the District.  Operation of 
the District is funded by a 0.325 percent sales tax approved by the voters.  The District is also 
reported as a Special Revenue Fund. 

 
 
 
 
 

(continued) 
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 I. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 

B. Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements 
 
The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net assets and the statement 
of changes in net assets) report information on all of the activities of the primary government 
and its component units.  For the most part, the effect of interfund activity has been removed 
from these statements.  G overnmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and 
intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely 
to a significant extent on fees and charges for support. 
 
The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given 
function or  s egment are o ffset b y p rogram r evenues.  D irect ex penses are t hose t hat a re 
clearly identifiable with a specific function or segment.  Program revenues include 1) charges 
to c ustomers or  applicants w ho pur chase, us e or di rectly b enefit f rom g oods, s ervices or  
privileges provided by a given function or segment; and 2) grants and contributions that are 
restricted t o m eeting t he o perational o r cap ital r equirements o f a p articular f unction o r 
segment.  Taxes and other items not properly included among program revenues are reported 
instead as general revenues. 
 
Separate f inancial s tatements a re p rovided f or governmental f unds and pr oprietary funds.  
Major individual funds and individual Enterprise Funds are reported as separate columns in 
the fund financial statements.   
 

C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Basis of Presentation 
 
The g overnment-wide f inancial s tatements ar e r eported u sing t he ec onomic r esources 
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund financial 
statements.  R evenues a re recorded when a l iability i s incurred, regardless of  the t iming of  
related cash flows.  Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are 
levied.  G rants an d s imilar i tems ar e r ecognized as  r evenue as  s oon as  al l el igibility 
requirements imposed by the provider have been met. 
 
Governmental f und f inancial s tatements ar e r eported u sing t he cu rrent financial r esources 
measurement focus and t he m odified accrual b asis of  a ccounting.  Under t he m odified 
accrual b asis o f ac counting, r evenues ar e r ecognized as  s oon as  t hey are m easurable an d 
available.  R evenues a re co nsidered t o b e av ailable w hen t hey ar e co llectible w ithin t he 
current p eriod or  s oon enough t hereafter t o pa y liabilities of  t he c urrent pe riod.  T he 
government considers al l revenues available if they are collected within 60 days after year-
end.  Expenditures generally are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred, as under 
accrual ac counting; however, de bt s ervice e xpenditures a nd e xpenditures r elated t o 
compensated absences and claims and judgments, are recorded only when payment is due. 
 
Property, franchise, an d s ales taxes, along w ith interest as sociated w ith t he cu rrent f iscal 
period ar e al l co nsidered t o b e s usceptible t o accrual an d s o h ave b een r ecognized as  
revenues of  t he c urrent f iscal pe riod.  A ll o ther r evenue i tems ar e considered t o b e 
measurable and available only when the City receives payment. 

 
(continued) 
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 I. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 

C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Basis of Presentation (Continued) 
 

The a ccounts o f t he C ity are or ganized a nd ope rated on  t he ba sis of  f unds.  A  f und i s a n 
independent fiscal an d accounting en tity w ith a s elf-balancing s et of  a ccounts.  F und 
accounting s egregates f unds a ccording t o t heir i ntended pur pose a nd i s us ed to a id 
management in  d emonstrating c ompliance w ith f inance-related l egal an d co ntractual 
provisions.  T he m inimum num ber of  f unds is maintained consistent w ith le gal and 
managerial requirements. 
 
Governmental Funds are those through which most functions of the City are financed.  The 
acquisition, us e, a nd ba lances of  t he C ity’s e xpendable f inancial r esources a nd t he r elated 
liabilities (except those accounted for in the proprietary fund type) are accounted for through 
governmental funds.  T he measurement focus is upon de termination of changes in financial 
position, rather than upon net income determination. 

 
The City reports the following major governmental fund: 
 

The General Fund is the government’s primary operating fund.  It accounts for 
the r esources u sed to f inance t he ba sic ope rations of  t he C ity a nd c overs a ll 
activities for which a separate fund has not been established. 
 

The City reports the following major proprietary funds: 
 

The Water and Sewer Fund is used to account for the operation of the water and 
sewage systems for the City. 

 
The Drainage Utility Fund is us ed t o a ccount f or t he c onstruction a nd 
maintenance of the drainage system for the City. 

 
Additionally, the government reports the following fund and fund types: 
 

The Special Revenue Funds are governmental f unds t hat a ccount for t he 
proceeds o f specific r evenue sources (other t han for m ajor c apital p rojects) t hat 
are legally restricted to expenditure for specific purposes. 

 
The Debt Service Fund accounts for the servicing of general long-term debt not 
being financed by proprietary or nonexpendable trust funds. 

 
The Capital Projects Funds account f or t he a cquisition of  c apital a ssets or  
construction of major capital projects not being financed by proprietary funds. 

 
 
 
 
 

(continued) 
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 I. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 

C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Basis of Presentation (Continued) 
 

The accounting a nd r eporting pol icies of  t he C ity relating t o t he f unds i ncluded i n t he 
accompanying basic financial statements conform to accounting principles generally accepted 
in the United States of America applicable to state and local governments.  Generally accepted 
accounting p rinciples for l ocal governments i nclude t hose p rinciples prescribed b y t he 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB), the American Institute of Certified Public 
Accountants in the publication entitled, Audits of State and Local Governmental Units and by 
the Financial Accounting Standards Board (when applicable).  A s allowed in Section P80 of  
GASB’s C odification of  G overnmental A ccounting and Financial R eporting S tandards, t he 
City ha s e lected not  t o a pply F inancial A ccounting Board S tatements a nd Interpretations, 
Accounting Principles Board Opinions, and Accounting Research Bulletins of the Committee 
of Accounting Procedures issued after November 30, 1989. 

 
As a  general rule, t he e ffect of  i nterfund activity has been e liminated f rom the government-
wide financial statements.  Exceptions to this general rule are charges and transfers between the 
governmental a ctivities a nd the bus iness-type activities. Elimination of  t hese charges would 
distort the direct costs and program revenue reported for the various functions concerned. 
 
Amounts r eported as pr ogram revenues i nclude 1)  c harges to customers or  a pplicants f or 
goods, s ervices, o r pr ivileges p rovided, 2)  o perating grants and c ontributions, a nd 3)  capital 
grants a nd c ontributions, i ncluding s pecial a ssessments.  Internally d edicated resources a re 
reported as  general r evenues r ather t han as  p rogram r evenues.  Likewise, g eneral r evenues 
include all taxes. 
 
Proprietary funds di stinguish ope rating revenues a nd e xpenses f rom n onoperating i tems.  
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and 
delivering goods i n c onnection w ith a  pr oprietary f und’s p rincipal on going op erations.  T he 
principal operating revenues of the City’s Enterprise Funds are charges to customers for sales 
and s ervices.  O perating e xpenses f or t he E nterprise Funds i nclude t he c ost of  s ales a nd 
services, a dministrative expenses, an d d epreciation o n capital assets.  All r evenues and 
expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses. 
 
When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the City’s policy to 
use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed. 
 

D. Assets, Liabilities and Net Assets or Equity 
 

 1. Deposits and Investments 
 

The government’s c ash a nd c ash equivalents are considered t o be  c ash on ha nd, 
demand deposits and short-term investments that are highly liquid with maturity within 
three months or less when purchased.  Assets reported as cash and cash equivalents and 
investments are considered cash and cash equivalents for the statement of cash flows. 

 
 

(continued) 
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I. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 

D. Assets, Liabilities and Net Assets or Equity (Continued) 
 

 2. Receivables and Payables 
 
All receivables are reported at their gross value and, where appropriate, are reduced by 
the estimated portion that is expected to be uncollectible.   
 
Transactions between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements 
outstanding a t t he e nd of t he f iscal year a re r eferred t o a s “ due t o/due f rom ot her 
funds.”  Any residual balances outstanding between the governmental activities and the 
business-type activities ar e r eported i n t he government-wide f inancial s tatements as 
“internal balances.” 

 
 3. Property Taxes 

 
Ad valorem property taxes are levied each October 1 from valuations assessed as of the 
prior January 1 and are recognized as revenue beginning on the date of levy, October 1, 
when they become available.  “Available” means collected within the current period or 
expected to be collected soon thereafter to be used to pay current liabilities.  Taxes not 
expected t o b e collected w ithin 6 0 d ays o f t he f iscal year en ding are r ecorded as 
deferred r evenue an d are r ecognized w hen t hey b ecome available.  T axes co llected 
prior t o t he l evy d ate t o w hich t hey apply are r ecorded as  d eferred r evenue an d 
recognized as revenue of the period to which they apply.  T axes are due on October 1 
immediately following the levy date and are delinquent after the following January 31.  
Tax liens are automatic on January 1 each year. 
 

 4. Inventory 
 
The inventory of supplies held by the Enterprise Funds is valued at cost using the first-
in fi rst-out ( “FIFO”) m ethod.  The c osts o f governmental f und t ype i nventories a re 
recorded as expenditures when consumed rather than when purchased.   
 

 5. Capital Assets 
 
Capital assets, which include property, plant and equipment, and infrastructure assets, 
are reported i n t he ap plicable governmental activities o r b usiness-type a ctivities 
columns i n t he g overnment-wide f inancial s tatements a nd i n t he pr oprietary f unds 
financial statements.  The City defines capital assets as assets with an initial, individual 
cost of  $5 ,000 a nd a n e stimated us eful l ife i n e xcess of  one year.  S uch as sets ar e 
recorded a t c ost or  e stimated hi storical cost i f pur chased or  c onstructed.  Donated 
capital assets are recorded at their estimated fair value at the date of donation. 
 
The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or 
materially extend assets lives are not capitalized. 
 

 
(continued) 
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 I. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 

D. Assets, Liabilities and Net Assets or Equity (Continued) 
 

 5. Capital Assets (Continued) 
 

Property, pl ant a nd e quipment of  t he pr imary government a nd pr oprietary f unds a re 
depreciated using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives. 
 

Buildings and improvements 20-40 years
Office equipment 5-20 years
Autos and trucks 4-5 years
Equipment 3-20 years
Waterworks and sewer system 5-40 years
Infrastructure 20-40 years  

 
The City has reported infrastructure capital assets acquired prior to the implementation 
of GASB Statement No. 34 at estimated historical cost. 
 

 6. Compensated Absences 
 
It is  the City’s policy to permit employees to accumulate earned but unused vacation, 
compensatory t ime, a nd s ick pa y b enefits.  S ick pa y be nefits a re not  pa id upon 
separation; therefore n o l iability i s r eported for u npaid accumulated s ick l eave.  
Vacation and compensatory time is accrued when incurred in the government-wide and 
proprietary fund f inancial s tatements.  A  liability for these amounts is  reported in the 
governmental f unds onl y if t hey h ave m atured, for e xample, a s a  result of e mployee 
resignations and retirements. 

 
 7. Long-term Obligations 

 
The g overnment-wide f inancial s tatements an d p roprietary f und t ype f inancial 
statements r eport lo ng-term de bt and ot her l ong-term o bligations a s lia bilities in  th e 
applicable governmental a ctivities, bus iness-type a ctivities, or  pr oprietary fund t ype 
statements of net assets.  Bond premiums and discounts, as well as issuance costs, are 
deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the straight-line method.  Bonds 
payable are reported net of  the applicable bond premium or discount.  B ond issuance 
costs are reported as deferred charges and amortized over the term of the related debt. 

 
In t he f und f inancial s tatements, g overnmental f und t ypes r ecognize bond pr emiums 
and di scounts, a s well a s bond i ssuance c osts, during t he c urrent p eriod.  T he face 
amount of  debt i ssued i s r eported as other f inancing sources.  P remiums received on  
debt issuances are reported as other financing sources while discounts on debt issuances 
are reported as other financing uses.  Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the 
actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures. 

 
 
 

(continued) 
 



34 

 I. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 

D. Assets, Liabilities and Net Assets or Equity (Continued) 
 

 8. Fund Balance Classification 
 
The governmental f und f inancial s tatements pr esent f und b alances ba sed on 
classifications that comprise a hierarchy that is based primarily on the extent to which 
the City is bound to honor constraints on the specific purposes for which amounts in the 
respective governmental f unds c an be  s pent.  T he classifications used i n t he 
governmental fund financial statements are as follows: 

 

• Nonspendable:  T his c lassification includes amounts that cannot be  spent because 
they are either (a) not in spendable form or (b) are legally or contractually required 
to be  maintained intact.  Nonspendable i tems a re not  expected to be  converted to 
cash or are not expected to be converted to cash within the next year. 
 

• Restricted:  T his c lassification i ncludes amounts f or w hich c onstraints ha ve be en 
placed o n t he u se o f t he r esources ei ther ( a) ex ternally i mposed b y creditors, 
grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments, or (b) imposed 
by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.  
 

• Committed:  This classification includes amounts that can be used only for specific 
purposes pursuant to constraints imposed by board resolution of the City Council, 
the City’s highest level of decision making authority. These amounts cannot be used 
for any other purpose unless the City Council removes or changes the specified use 
by taking the same type of action that was employed when the funds were initially 
committed. T his c lassification a lso in cludes c ontractual o bligations t o t he ex tent 
that existing resources have been specifically committed for use in satisfying those 
contractual requirements.  
 

• Assigned:  T his classification includes amounts that are constrained b y the City’s 
intent t o be  us ed f or a  s pecific pur pose but  are neither r estricted n or co mmitted.  
This classification includes amounts that are constrained by the City’s intent to be 
used for a specific purpose but are neither restricted nor committed. This intent can 
be expressed by the City Council or City Manager.  
 

• Unassigned:  T his classification includes the residual fund balance for the General 
Fund. The unassigned classification also includes negative residual fund balance of 
any ot her g overnmental fund t hat c annot be  e liminated b y of fsetting of  a ssigned 
fund balance amounts. 

 
When an expenditure is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted 
fund ba lance i s a vailable, t he C ity c onsiders r estricted f unds t o ha ve b een s pent f irst. 
When a n e xpenditure i s i ncurred f or w hich c ommitted, a ssigned, or  una ssigned f und 
balances a re a vailable, t he C ity c onsiders a mounts t o ha ve be en s pent f irst out  of  
committed funds, then assigned funds, and finally unassigned funds. 

 
 

(continued) 
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 I. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 

D. Assets, Liabilities and Net Assets or Equity (Continued) 
  

 9. Net Assets 
 

Net assets represent the difference between assets and liabilities.  Net assets invested in 
capital as sets, n et o f r elated d ebt, consist o f cap ital a ssets, n et o f accu mulated 
depreciation, reduced b y the out standing ba lances o f a ny bo rrowing used f or t he 
acquisition, construction or  i mprovements of  t hose assets, a nd a dding back uns pent 
proceeds.  N et assets a re r eported as restricted when t here are l imitations i mposed o n 
their use either through the enabling legislations adopted by the City or through external 
restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors or laws or regulations of other governments. 

 
10.  Use of Estimates 

 
The pr eparation of  f inancial s tatements i n c onformity w ith ge nerally ac cepted 
accounting pr inciples r equires management to  make e stimates a nd a ssumptions th at 
affect t he reported a mounts of  a ssets and l iabilities a nd di sclosures o f c ontingent 
liabilities a t the date o f the f inancial s tatements and the reported amounts o f revenue 
and e xpenses dur ing t he r eporting pe riod.  A ctual a mounts c ould di ffer f rom t hose 
estimates. 

 
 
 II. RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

Explanation of Certain Differences Between the Governmental Fund Balance Sheet and the  
Government-wide Statement of Net Assets 

 
The f und financial s tatements includes a  r econciliation be tween fund balance – total 
governmental funds and net assets – governmental activities as reported in the government-wide 
statement o f n et as sets.  O ne element o f th at reconciliation e xplains, “Long-term lia bilities, 
including bonds payable (net of amortized costs) are not due and payable in the current period 
and, therefore, are not reported in the funds.”  The details of this $(2,169,233) difference are as 
follows: 

 
Certificates of obligation 580,000)$(           
Tax notes 77,000)(             
Contractual obligations 898,000)(           
Deferred charges - bond costs 45,010             
Accrued interest payable 10,174)(             
Compensated absences 390,674)(           
Net pension obligations 258,395)(           

   Net adjustment to reduce fund balance - total
      governmental funds to arrive at net assets - 
      governmental activities 2,169,233)$(         

 
(continued) 
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 II. RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 (Continued) 

 
Explanation of Certain Differences Between the Governmental Fund Balance Sheet and the  

Government-wide Statement of Net Assets (Continued) 
 

The governmental f und balance s heet i ncludes a  r econciliation b etween fund balance – total 
governmental funds and net assets – governmental activities as reported in the government-wide 
statement of net assets.  One element of that reconciliation explains, “Other long-term assets are 
not a vailable t o pa y f or current period e xpenditures a nd, t herefore a re de ferred i n t he f unds.”  
The details of this $853,913 difference are as follows: 

 
Property taxes receivable 116,227$             
Court fines receivable 422,487            
Franchise taxes receivable 216,430            
Ambulance receivable 64,524              
Other receivables 34,245              

   Net adjustment to reduce fund balance - total
      governmental funds to arrive at net assets - 
      governmental activities 853,913$              

 
Explanation  of Certain Differences Between the  Governmental Fund Statement of Revenue,  

Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances and the Government-wide Statement of Activities 
 

The governmental fund s tatement of  r evenue, e xpenditures a nd c hanges i n f und ba lances 
includes a reconciliation between net changes in fund balances – total governmental fund and 
changes in net assets of governmental activities as reported in the government-wide statement of 
activities.  O ne e lement of  t hat r econciliation e xplains, “ Governmental f unds report cap ital 
outlays a s e xpenditures.  H owever, i n t he s tatement of  a ctivities, t he c ost of  t hose a ssets i s 
allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense.”  The details of 
this $(89,685) difference are as follows: 

 
Capital outlay 1,134,449$      
Depreciation expense 1,195,821)(     
Other miscellaneous transactions involving capital assets 28,313)(          

   Net adjustment to increase net changes in fund 
      balances - total governmental funds  to arrive at
      changes in net assets of governmental activities 89,685)$(           

 
Another e lement of that reconciliation s tates, “Some revenues in  the s tatement of activities do 
not provide current f inancial r esources and are not  included in t he governmental funds.”  The 
details of this $(72,655) difference are as follows: 

 
 
 
 

(continued) 
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 II. RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 (Continued) 

 
Explanation  of Certain Differences Between the  Governmental Fund Statement of Revenue,  

Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances and the Government-wide Statement of Activities 
(Continued) 

 

Property taxes 2,666$              
Court fines receivable 344,345         
Franchise taxes receivable 8,306)(             
Sales taxes receivable 224,808)(         
Ambulance receivable 220,797)(         
Other receivables 34,245           

   Net adjustment to increase net changes in fund balances -
      total governmental funds  to arrive at changes in net
      assets of governmental activities 72,655)$(            

 
Another e lement of  t hat r econciliation s tates, “ The i ssuance of  l ong-term de bt ( e.g., bonds , 
leases) provides current f inancial resources to governmental funds, while the repayment of the 
principal of  l ong-term d ebt c onsumes t he c urrent f inancial resources of  g overnmental funds.  
Neither t ransaction, h owever, h as an y ef fect o n n et as sets.”  T he d etails o f t his $ (112,686) 
difference are as follows: 
 

Principal repayments 331,000$           
Bond issuance 450,000)(          
Bond issuance costs 6,314              

   Net adjustment to decrease net changes in fund balances -
      total governmental funds  to arrive at changes in net
      assets of governmental activities 112,686)$(           

 
 
 III. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS 
 

A. Deposits and Investments 
 

As of September 30, 2011, the City had the following investments: 
 

Weighted Percentage
Credit Average of Total Fair

Investment Rating Maturities Investments Cost Value

U. S. Treasury Bills N/A 180 days 33.29% 1,099,812$    1,099,912$    
U. S. Treasury Notes N/A 90 days 66.60% 2,199,920   2,200,000   
TexPool AAAm 68 days 0.11% 3,614          3,614          

3,303,346$    3,303,526$    
Reconciliation to financial statements

Investments from Statement of Net Assets 3,640,549$    
Less: Certificates of deposit 337,203      

3,303,346$     
(continued) 
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 III. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued) 
 

A. Deposits and Investments (Continued) 
 
The P ublic F unds Investment A ct ( Government C ode C hapter 2256)  c ontains s pecific 
provisions i n t he a reas of  i nvestment pr actices, m anagement r eports a nd e stablishment of  
appropriate pol icies.  A mong ot her t hings, i t r equires t he C ity t o adopt, i mplement a nd 
publicize an investment policy.  That policy must address the following areas:  (1) safety of 
principal and liquidity, (2) portfolio diversification, (3) allowable investments, (4) acceptable 
risk levels, (5) expected rates of return, (6) maximum allowable stated maturity of portfolio 
investments, ( 7) ma ximum a verage d ollar-weighted m aturity allowed b ased on t he s tated 
maturity da te f or t he p ortfolio, ( 8) i nvestment staff qua lity a nd c apabilities, a nd ( 9) bi d 
solicitation preferences for certificates of deposit.  Statutes authorize the City to invest in (1) 
obligations of  t he U . S . T reasury, c ertain U . S . a gencies, a nd t he S tate of  T exas; ( 2) 
certificates of  deposit, (3) certain municipal securities, (4) money market savings accounts, 
(5) repurchase agreements, (6) bankers’ acceptances, (7) Mutual Funds, (8) investment pools, 
(9) guaranteed investment contracts, and (10) common trust funds.  The Act also requires the 
City to have independent auditors perform test procedures related to investment practices as 
provided by the Act.  The City is in substantial compliance with the requirements of the Act 
and with local policies. 
 
The City’s investment pool is a 2a7-like pool.  A 2a7-like pool is one which is not registered 
with t he S ecurities a nd E xchange C ommission ( “SEC”) a s a n i nvestment c ompany, but  
nevertheless has a policy that it will, and does, operate in a manner consistent with the SEC’s 
Rule 2a 7 o f t he Investment C ompany A ct of  19 40.  T he C ity uses t he f ollowing e xternal 
investment pool: 
 
TexPool 
 
Under t he T exPool P articipation A greement, a dministrative a nd in vestment s ervices to  
TexPool a re pr ovided b y Lehman Brothers, Inc. a nd Federated Investors, Inc. t hrough a n 
agreement w ith t he S tate o f T exas C omptroller o f P ublic A ccountants.  T he S tate 
Comptroller is the sole officer, director, and shareholder of the Texas Treasury Safekeeping 
Trust Company authorized to operate TexPool. 
 
TexPool i s r ated A AAm b y S tandard & P oor’s.  A s a  r equirement t o m aintain t he r ating, 
weekly portfolio information must be submitted to Standard & Poor’s, as well as the Office 
of the Comptroller of Public Accounts for review.  T exPool uses amortized cost rather than 
market value to report net assets to compute share prices.  Accordingly, the fair value of the 
position in TexPool is the same as the value of TexPool shares. 
 
Custodial Credit Risk – Deposits 
 
Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the government’s deposits 
may not be returned to it.  State statutes require that all deposits in financial institutions be fully 
collateralized by U. S. Government Obligations or its agencies and instrumentalities or direct 
obligations of Texas or its agencies and instrumentalities that have a fair value of not less than 
the p rincipal amount of deposits.  A s of  September 30, 2 011, t he C ity’s $4,779,624 deposit 
balance was collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial institution or covered 
by FDIC insurance.   

(continued) 
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 III. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued) 
 

A. Deposits and Investments (Continued) 
 

Credit Risk – Investments 
 
The City controls credit risk by limiting its investments to those instruments allowed by the 
State Public Funds Investment Act described above. 

 
Interest Rate Risk – Investments 

 
The C ity m anages i nterest r ate r isk b y structuring its  p ortfolio s o th at it w ill e xperience 
minimal volatility during economic cycles.  This is accomplished by purchasing high quality, 
short to  me dium te rm s ecurities w hich w ill c omplement e ach o ther.  The d ollar w eighted 
average maturity of 365 days or less will be calculated using the stated final maturity date of 
each security. 

 
B. Restricted Assets 

 
Certain proceeds of the City’s Enterprise Fund revenue bonds, as well as certain resources set 
aside for their repayment, are classified as restricted assets on the balance sheet because their 
use is l imited by applicable bond or dinances and other legal restrictions.  Enterprise Funds 
restricted assets are held for the following purposes in accordance with bond ordinances or  
other legal restrictions: 

 
Current
   2002 Revenue Bonds I&S
      Cash 10,734$       
   2002 Revenue Bonds Reserve
      Cash 354,514    
   EPA Wastewater
      Cash 697,921    
   2007 Revenue Bonds Construction
      Cash 27,345      
   2007 Revenue Bonds I&S
      Cash 2,004        
   2010 Revenue Bonds Construction
      Cash 202,821    
      U. S. Treasury Bills 1,999,928 
   2010 Revenue Bonds I&S
      Cash 9,196        

3,304,463$   
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 III. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued) 
 

C. Property Taxes 
 

Property tax rates, established in accordance with state law, are levied on real and personal 
property within the City for use in f inancing and general and debt service expenditures for 
the 2011 f iscal year (2010 tax year), resulting in an adjusted tax levy of approximately $2.2 
million ba sed on  a n a ssessed pr operty va luation of  a pproximately $ 426.8 m illion w ere a s 
follows: 

 
Tax Rate per

$100 of
Assessed Value

General fund 0.466951$           
Debt service fund 0.051061          

            Total tax rate 0.5180$                
 

D. Receivables 
 

Amounts recorded as r eceivable as o f September 30, 2011,  for the City’s individual major 
and nonmajor funds, i ncluding the applicable a llowances for uncollectible accounts, a re as 
follows: 

 
Nonmajor

Water and
General and Sewer Other Funds Total

Receivables:
   Taxes 373,730$     -$           46,446$     420,176$     
   Intergovernmental 414,307    -          394,759  809,066    
   Fines 1,408,289 -          -        1,408,289 
   Accounts -          1,174,059 76,465    1,250,524 
   Ambulance 2,187,496 -          -        2,187,496 
Gross receivables 4,383,822 1,174,059 517,670  6,075,551 
Less: allowance for
   uncollectibles 3,148,023 445,286    10,563    3,603,872 

Net total receivables 1,235,799$  728,773$     507,107$   2,471,679$   
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 III. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued) 
 

D. Receivables (Continued) 
 

Governmental funds report deferred revenue in connection with receivables for revenue that 
is not considered to be available to liquidate liabilities of the current period.  G overnmental 
funds a lso defer revenue recognition in connection with resources that have been received, 
but not yet earned.  At the end of the current fiscal year, the various components of deferred 
revenue and unearned revenue reported in the governmental funds were as follows: 

 

Unavailable Unearned

Delinquent property taxes receivable (general) 91,581$        -$            
Delinquent property taxes receivable (debt service) 24,646       -           
Franchise tax receivable 242,900     -           
Court fines 422,487     -           
Ambulance charges receivable 64,524       -           
Other 34,245       -           

      Total governmental funds 880,383$      -$             
 

E. Interfund Receivable, Payables and Transfers 
 

The composition of  interfund balances for the C ity’s individual major funds and nonmajor 
funds as of September 30, 2011, is as follows: 

 
Receivable Fund Payable Fund Amount

General Other governmental funds 98,780$         
Water and sewer 1,207,095   
Drainage utility 2,340          

Other governmental funds General 123,255      

Total governmental funds 1,431,470$    

Drainage utility General 7,595$           
Water and sewer 369,409      

Water and sewer Drainage utility 2,482          

Total enterprise funds 379,486$        
 

The G eneral F und p aid e xpenditures f or t he ot her governmental f unds a nd t he W ater a nd 
Sewer Fund but  w as not  r eimbursed be fore year-end.  T he r evenue o f o ther governmental 
funds w as d eposited i nto t he G eneral Fund but  not  t ransferred t o t he appropriate o ther 
governmental funds before year-end.  The Water and Sewer Fund collected customer billing 
on behalf of the Drainage Utility Fund but did not transfer it before year-end. 
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 III. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued) 
 

E. Interfund Receivable, Payables and Transfers (Continued) 
 
$830,477 of the interfund balance between the General Fund and the Water and Sewer Fund 
is not  e xpected t o be  repaid w ithin t he ne xt year.  T he G eneral F und ha s r eported 
nonspendable fund balance and the payable has been reported as a noncurrent liability in the 
proprietary funds statement of net assets. 
 
The composition of  interfund t ransfers for the C ity’s individual major funds and nonmajor 
funds at September 30, 2011, is as follows: 
 

Transfers in Transfers out Amount Purpose

Other governmental funds Other governmental funds 133,006$    Debt service

Water and sewer Other governmental funds 200,000$    Increased water sewer costs
Drainage utility 2,482         Debt covenant requirements

   Total enterprise funds 202,482$     
 

F. Capital Assets 
 

Capital asset activity for the year ended September 30, 2011, was as follows: 
 

Beginning Ending
Governmental activities Balance Increases Decreases Adjustments Balance

Capital assets, not being depreciated:
   Land 325,343$         -$            -$           -$           325,343$         
   Construction in progress 728,803        717,590     873,247    207,112)(    366,034        
            Total capital assets not being depreciated 1,054,146     717,590     873,247    207,112)(    691,377        

Capital assets, being depreciated:
   Improvements other than buildings 1,020,799     51,549       -          70,282)(      1,002,066     
   Buildings 2,205,361     5,841         -          11,900)(      2,199,302     
   Machinery and equipment 4,573,596     411,018     265,871    805,377)(    3,913,366     
   Streets 18,802,682   821,698     -          4,050)(        19,620,330   
            Total capital assets, being depreciated 26,602,438   1,290,106  265,871    891,609)(    26,735,064   

Less: accumulated depreciated for:
   Improvements other than buildings 813,278)(        44,621)(       -          47,711      810,188)(        
   Buildings 1,040,795)(     60,764)(       -          5,070        1,096,489)(     
   Machinery and equipment 3,650,565)(     236,093)(     237,558)(    778,625    2,870,475)(     
   Streets 12,523,117)(   854,343)(     -          1,215        13,376,245)(   
            Total  capital assets being depreciated 18,027,755)(   1,195,821)(  237,558)(    832,621    18,153,397)(   

Total capital assets being depreciated, net 8,574,683     94,285       28,313      58,988)(      8,581,667     

      Total governmental activities, net 9,628,829$      811,875$      901,560$     266,100)$(    9,273,044$       
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 III. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued) 
 

F. Capital Assets (Continued) 
 

Beginning Ending
Business-type activities Balance Increases Decreases Balance

Capital assets, not being depreciated:
   Land 256,267$            -$               -$               256,267$            
   Construction in progress 310,204           512,770        -              822,974           
            Total capital assets not being depreciated 566,471           512,770        -              1,079,241        

Capital assets, being depreciated:
   Improvements other than buildings 187,780           -              4,988            182,792           
   Buildings 193,430           -              19,408          174,022           
   Water and sewer systems 16,248,492      -              58,304          16,190,188      
   Machinery and equipment 1,102,247        100,788        36,431          1,166,604        
            Total capital assets, being depreciated 17,731,949      100,788        119,131        17,713,606      

Less: accumulated depreciated for:
   Improvements other than buildings 30,191)(             5,056)(            4,988)(            30,259)(             
   Buildings 181,452)(           2,232)(            19,296)(          164,388)(           
   Water and sewer systems 5,393,608)(        395,701)(        44,819)(          5,744,490)(        
   Machinery and equipment 910,840)(           71,135)(          35,298)(          946,677)(           
            Total  capital assets being depreciated 6,516,091)(        474,124)(        104,401)(        6,885,814)(        

Total capital assets being depreciated, net 11,215,858      373,336)(        14,730          10,827,792      

      Total business-type activities, net 11,782,329$       139,434$         14,730$           11,907,033$        
 

Depreciation expense was charged to functions of the primary government as follows: 
 

Governmental activities:
   General government 10,531$         
   Public Safety 277,963      
   Public Works 871,594      
   Culture and recreation 24,929        
   Parks and beautification 10,804        

Total depreciation expense- governmental activities 1,195,821$    

Business-type activities:
   Water/sewer 460,461$       
   Drainage utility 13,663        

Total depreciation expense - business-type activities 474,124$        
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 III. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued) 
 

G. Long-term Liabilities 
 
Governmental Activities 
 
Combination Tax and Revenue Certificates of Obligation, Series 2001 
 
A series of  certificates of obl igation totaling $1,325,000 were issued on May 15, 2001, for 
the construction of street improvements and to pay the costs of issuing the certificates.  The 
City reserves the right to redeem the certificates maturing on and after August 15, 2011, i n 
whole or in part, in principal amounts of $5,000 or any integral multiple thereof, on August 
15, 2009, or  any date thereafter, at a redemption price of par plus accrued interest.  Interest 
rates range from 4.25% to 5.6%.  T otal maturity of this series is on A ugust 15, 2016.  T he 
obligations and interest are direct, and general obligations of the City and are payable from 
collection of ad valorem taxes and limited surplus net revenues derived from operation of the 
water a nd s ewer s ystem, i f a ny.  T he ba lance of  t his obl igation a t S eptember 30, 2011, i s 
$580,000. 
 
City of Richland Hills, Texas Tax Note Series 2005 

 
A tax note dated February 1, 2005, totaling $400,000 was purchased by Zions First National 
Bank on February 23, 2005.  T he t ax not e was i ssued f or t he pur pose of  acquiring and 
purchasing personal property for the City and for paying the costs related to the issuance of 
the t ax not e.  T he i nterest r ate i s 3.78%  a nd t he obl igations m ature t hrough February 15, 
2012.  O n August 15, 20 08, or on a ny date thereafter, any outstanding principal installment 
may be redeemed in whole, prior to its scheduled payment date, at the option of the City, at 
the price of par plus accrued interest, upon the giving of 45 days written notice to Zions First 
National Bank.  P rincipal and interest are payable f rom ad valorem taxes.  T his obligation 
was repaid during fiscal year 2011. 
 
City of Richland Hills, Texas Tax Note Series 2006 
 
A t ax note da ted February 1, 2 006, t otaling $415,000 w as purchases b y Bank of  America, 
N.A. on F ebruary 15, 2 006. The t ax note was i ssued to purchase computer equipment and 
software f or t he pol ice and f inance d epartments of  t he C ity, pol ice a nd f ire d epartment 
equipment, i maging e quipment f or t he C ity S ecretary’s o ffice, v ehicles f or t he p olice, f ire 
and c ommunity d evelopment de partments of  t he C ity, a  ba ckhoe f or the publ ic w orks 
department of  t he C ity, library e quipment a nd t he l egal a nd f iscal f ees in c onnection w ith 
such pr ojects.  The i nterest r ate i s 3.50%  a nd t he obl igations m ature t hrough A ugust 15,  
2012.  P rincipal installments of  this note are not  subject to redemption in whole or  in part 
prior to their scheduled payment dates.  P rincipal and interest are payable from ad valorem 
taxes.  The balance of this obligation at September 30, 2011, is $77,000. 
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 III. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued) 
 

G. Long-term Liabilities (Continued) 
 
Governmental Activities (Continued) 

 
City of Richland Hills, Public Property Finance Contractual Obligation Series 2007 
 
A series of contractual obligations totaling $535,000 dated February 1, 2007, were issued for 
the purpose of paying all or a portion of the Issuer’s contractual obligations to be incurred in 
connection w ith t he a cquisition or  pur chase of  personal pr operty, i n a ccordance w ith t he 
provisions of  the Public Property Finance Act, and to pay the costs incurred in connection 
with the issuance of the contractual obligation.  The interest rate is 3.825% and the obligation 
matures through August 15, 2022.  P rincipal and interest are payable from ad valorem taxes.  
The balance of this obligation at September 30, 2011, is $425,000. 

 
City of Richland Hills, Public Property Finance Contractual Obligation Series 2011 
 
A series of contractual obligations totaling $473,000 dated February 1, 2011, were issued for 
the purpose of paying all or a portion of the Issuer’s contractual obligations to be incurred in 
connection w ith t he a cquisition or  pur chase of  personal pr operty, i n a ccordance w ith th e 
provisions of  the Public Property Finance Act, and to pay the costs incurred in connection 
with the issuance of the contractual obligation.  The interest rate is 3.64% and the obligation 
matures through August 15, 2016.  P rincipal and interest are payable from ad valorem taxes.  
The balance of this obligation at September 30, 2011, is $473,000. 
 
Business-type Activities 

 
1998 Combination Tax and Water and Sewer Revenue Certificates of Obligation 
 
The U . S . E nvironmental P rotection A gency i ssued an A dministrative O rder to  th e C ity, 
mandating millions of dollars of improvements to the wastewater system with the City.  The 
City obtained from the Texas Water Development Board a loan in the amount of $4 million 
and in turn the City approved the issuance of Certificates of Obligation in the amount of $4 
million to be  us ed t o s ecure t he l oan.  A  m onthly charge i n t he a mount of  $8.17 pe r 
wastewater s ervice customer i s u sed t o r epay t his C ertificate o f O bligation.  Interest r ates 
range from 2.65% to 3.90% and the obligation’s last payment date is August 15, 2018.  T he 
balance of this certificate of obligation is $1,860,000 at September 30, 2011. 
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 III. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued) 
 

G. Long-term Liabilities (Continued) 
 
Business-type Activities (Continued) 
 
Waterworks and Sewer System Revenue Bonds, Series 2002 
 
A s eries of  400 bonds  at $5,000 e ach d ated M arch 15, 2002, w ere i ssued f or t he publ ic 
purpose of  acquiring, constructing and i nstalling n ew additions a nd i mprovements t o t he 
waterworks and sewer system and paying the costs incurred in connection with issuance of 
the bonds .  O n August 15, 2012, or  on a ny date thereafter, the bonds  o f this series having 
stated m aturities on a nd a fter A ugust 15, 2013, may be  r edeemed pr ior to t heir s cheduled 
maturities, a t t he opt ion of  t he i ssuer w ith f unds de rived f rom a ny a vailable a nd l awful 
source, as a whole, or in part, in principal amounts of $5,000 or any integral multiple thereof, 
at a redemption price of par plus accrued interest.  Interest rates range from 4.75% to 5.15%.  
Total maturity of this series is on A ugust 15, 202 2.  P rincipal and interest are payable from 
net revenues from the water and sewer system.  The City i s required to maintain a r eserve 
account equal to the average annual debt service requirements.  The balance of these bonds at 
September 30, 2011, is $1,340,000. 
 
The bonds ’ agreement r equires t he C ity’s W ater a nd S ewer F und t o m aintain a nd c harge 
rates that will produce net revenues equal to 1.25 times the debt service of the bonds and any 
additional bonds; and that will be sufficient to generate all deposits required to be made into 
the funds created under bond ordinances and any ordinance authorizing additional bonds.   
 
For th e year, th is r atio is  me asured a t 1.69 meaning t hat s ufficient n et r evenues w ere 
available to comply with this bond covenant. 
 
Combination Tax and Water and Sewer Revenue Certificates of Obligation, Series 2007 
 
Certificates of  Obligation dated March 15, 2007, w ere issued for paying all or  a  portion of 
the C ity’s c ontractual o bligations i ncurred i n c onnection w ith ( i) a cquiring, constructing, 
installing a nd e quipping a dditions, e xtensions a nd i mprovements t o t he C ity’s w aterworks 
and s ewer s ystem, a nd t he a cquisition of  l and a nd i nterests i n land as  n ecessary; and ( ii) 
legal, f iscal, design and engineering fees in connection with such projects.  O n August 15,  
2017, or on any date thereafter, the certificates of this series having stated maturities on and 
after August 15, 2018, m ay be redeemed prior to their scheduled maturities, at the option of 
the issuer with funds derived from any available and lawful source, as a whole, or in part, in 
principal amounts of  $5, 000 or  a ny i ntegral m ultiple t hereof, a t a  r edemption pr ice of  pa r 
plus accrued interest.  Interest rates range from 3.6% to 4.0%.  Total maturity of this series is 
on A ugust 15, 2027.  A d va lorem t axes a nd t he s urplus r evenues of  t he W ater a nd S ewer 
Fund a re pl edged t o t he pa yment of  t he c ertificates, how ever, i f s urplus r evenues or  ot her 
lawfully available funds of the City are actually on deposit in the Interest and Sinking Fund 
in advance of the time when ad valorem taxes are scheduled to be levied for any year, then 
the amount of taxes required to be levied may be reduced by the revenues on de posit in the 
Interest a nd S inking F und.  T he ba lance o f t hese c ertificates a t S eptember 30, 2011, i s 
$1,800,000. 
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 III. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued) 
 

G. Long-term Liabilities (Continued) 
 
Business-type Activities (Continued) 

 
Combination Tax and Water and Sewer Revenue Certificates of Obligation, Series 2010 
 
Certificates of Obligation dated March 1, 2010, were issued for paying all or a portion of the 
City’s c ontractual obl igations i ncurred i n c onnection w ith ( i) a cquiring, c onstructing, 
installing and equipping improvements to the City’s storm water and drainage utility system, 
and the acquisition of land and interests in land as necessary therefore; and (ii) legal, fiscal, 
design and engineering fees in connection with such projects.  O n February 15, 2020, or  on 
any date thereafter, the certificates of this series having stated maturities on and after August 
15, 2020, m ay b e redeemed pr ior t o t heir s cheduled m aturities, a t t he o ption of  t he i ssuer 
with funds derived from any available and lawful source, as a whole, or in part, in principal 
amounts of $5,000 or any integral multiple thereof, at a redemption price of par plus accrued 
interest.  Interest r ates r ange f rom 3.000%  t o 4.125% .  T otal m aturity o f t his s eries i s o n 
August 15, 2030.  A d valorem taxes and the surplus revenues of the Drainage Utility Fund 
are pledged to the payment of the certificates, however, if surplus revenues or other lawfully 
available f unds of  t he City are a ctually on  de posit i n t he Interest and S inking F und i n 
advance of the time when ad valorem taxes are scheduled to be levied for any year, then the 
amount of  t axes r equired t o be  l evied m ay be reduced b y t he r evenues on de posit i n t he 
Interest an d S inking F und.  T he b alance o f t hese c ertificates at S eptember 30, 2011, i s 
$2,700,000. 

 
Future Requirements 
 
The an nual r equirements t o am ortize al l cer tificates o f o bligation, t ax n otes, co ntractual 
obligations and revenue bonds outstanding as of September 30, 2011, are as follows: 
 

 
Fiscal
Year

Ending Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest

2012 293,000$       71,070$       510,000$       301,872$       803,000$       372,942$       
2013 238,000      50,383      530,000      283,046      768,000      333,429      
2014 246,000      40,434      555,000      263,305      801,000      303,739      
2015 255,000      30,065      580,000      242,452      835,000      272,517      
2016 268,000      19,272      605,000      220,419      873,000      239,691      

2017-2021 210,000      33,278      2,435,000   197,064      2,645,000   230,342      
2022-2026 45,000        1,721        1,585,000   -            1,630,000   1,721          
2027-2031 -            -         900,000      84,314        900,000      84,314        

Totals 1,555,000$    246,223$     7,700,000$    1,592,472$    9,255,000$    1,838,695$    

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Totals
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 III. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued) 
 

G. Long-term Liabilities (Continued) 
 
Future Requirements (Continued) 

 
The f ollowing i s a  s ummary o f l ong-term de bt transactions of  t he C ity for t he year e nded 
September 30, 2011. 

 
Beginning Ending Due Within
Balance Increases Decreases Balance One Year

Governmental activities:
   Certificates of obligation 680,000$        -$       100,000$       580,000$        105,000$   
   Tax notes 278,000       -      201,000      77,000         77,000    
   Contractual obligation bonds 455,000       473,000 30,000        898,000       111,000  
   Compensated absences 220,531       271,301 101,158      390,674       78,135    
   Net pension obligation 167,509       90,886   -           258,395       -        
            Total governmental activities 1,801,040    835,187 432,158      2,204,069    371,135  

Business-type activities:
   Combination Tax and Revenue Certificates 6,710,000$     -$       350,000$       6,360,000$     415,000$   
   Waterworks and sewer system revenue bonds 1,435,000    -      95,000        1,340,000    95,000    
   Capital lease payable 300,521       -      44,741        255,780       46,754    
   Note payable - wastewater charges 375,152       -      375,152      -             -        
   Compensated absences 84,630         32,533   42,944        74,219         14,844    
   Net pension 43,664         23,929   -           67,593         -        
            Total business-type activities 8,948,967    56,462   907,837      8,097,592    571,598  

10,750,007$   891,649$  1,339,995$    10,301,661$   942,733$    
 

Compensated Absences 
 
Compensated a bsences and t he ne t p ension obl igations o f t he governmental a ctivities a nd 
business-type activities ar e p aid b y t he G eneral Fund an d W ater and S ewer Fund, 
respectively. 
 

H. Notes Payable – Wastewater Charges 
 
The C ity h as a  contract with t he C ity Fort W orth for w astewater t reatment.  During fiscal 
year 2010, the two c ities agreed to a  pa yment p lan for services rendered in February 2010  
through September 30, 2010, totaling $601,683, which includes late fees of $7,969.  The first 
payment of $123,000 was due November 20, 2010.  Subsequent payments of $19,945 are due 
on t he 20 th of e ach m onth f rom D ecember 201 0 t hrough N ovember 20 12.  However, i n 
March 2011, it was discovered that the City of Fort Worth’s wastewater meter was recording 
incorrect f lows.  R ichland H ills r eceived a  credit of  $226,531 f or t he u sage of  S eptember 
2010 through September 2011.  T his credit was applied to the balance due on t he payment 
plan a nd l eft a b alance due of  $375,152  at S eptember 30, 2010 .  In M arch, t he t wo c ities 
agreed t o a  n ew pa yment pl an a s a  result of  t he c redit g iven t o R ichland H ills, w hich 
consisted of eight payments of $13,545 e ach.  A t the end of fiscal year 2011 all of the debt 
had been repaid to the City of Fort Worth.  
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 III. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued) 
 

H. Capital Leases Payable 
 
On November 3, 2006, t he C ity e ntered i nto a  l ease-purchase a greement w ith Chase 
Equipment Leasing, Inc. to finance an electronic meter read project for the Water and Sewer 
Fund.  The total cost of the project was $581,801.  The interest rate is 4.5% per annum.  The 
$478,191 proceeds of  the lease-purchase agreement were deposited into an escrow account 
with the Bank of New York Trust Company, N.A.  During the fiscal year ending September 
30, 2009, t he remaining lease proceeds of $129,404 were received.  Future minimum lease-
purchase commitments are as follows: 

 
Fiscal Year Business-type

Ending Activities

2012 58,265$           
2013 58,264          
2014 58,264          
2015 58,264          
2016 58,264          

Total debt service requirements 291,321        
Less: interest portion 35,541          

            Debt principal 255,780$          
 
Assets u nder l ease-purchase a greements an d the r elated a ccumulated d epreciation ar e 
reported as follows: 
 

Business-type
Activities

Water and sewer systems 581,801$         
Less: accumulated depreciation 123,633        

            Net 458,168$          
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 III. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued) 
 

J. Fund Balance 
 

As of September 30, 2011, governmental fund balance is composed of the following: 
 

Other
Fund Balance Classification General Governmental Totals

Nonspendable:
   Advances to other funds 830,477$        -$           830,477$        

Restricted:
   Retirement of long-term debt -             92,309       92,309         
   Capital acquisition and construction -             266,940     266,940       
   Tourism activities -             79,441       79,441         
   Economic development -             433,792     433,792       
   Crime control district -             616,995     616,995       
   Red Light Camera Enforce -             125,945     125,945       

Assigned:
   Capital acquisition and construction -             23,425       23,425         

Unassigned 1,496,041    -          1,496,041    

Total governmental fund balance 2,326,518$     1,638,847$   3,965,365$      
 
 
 IV. OTHER INFORMATION  
 

A. Risk Management 
 

The C ity i s e xposed t o va rious risks of  l oss related t o t orts; t heft of , da mage t o, a nd 
destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters.  The 
City’s r isk m anagement program e ncompasses obtaining pr operty a nd liability i nsurance 
through Texas Municipal League (TML), an Intergovernmental Risk-Pool.  The City has not 
had any significant reduction in insurance coverage and the amounts of insurance settlements 
have not exceeded insurance coverage for any of the last three years.  The participation of the 
City in TML is limited to payment of premiums.  During the year ended September 30, 2011, 
the C ity pa id pr emiums t o T ML f or pr ovisions of  va rious l iability, pr operty and casualty 
insurance.  T he C ity h as va rious d eductible amounts r anging f rom $ 250 t o $25,000 on  
various pol icies.  A t year-end, t he C ity did not  have any s ignificant c laims.  T ML will be  
self-sustaining through member premiums and will reinsure through commercial companies 
for claims in excess of specified dollar amounts for each insured event. 
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 IV. OTHER INFORMATION (Continued) 
 

A. Risk Management (Continued) 
 

The C ity a lso provides workers’ c ompensation i nsurance o n its e mployees t hrough T ML.  
Workers’ compensation is subject to change when audited by TML.  A t year-end, September 
30, 2 011, t he C ity be lieved t he a mounts pa id on w orkers’ c ompensation w ould n ot c hange 
significantly from the amounts recorded. 

 
B. Deferred Compensation Plan 

 
The City offers its employees a deferred compensation plan created in accordance with Internal 
Revenue Code Section 457.  The plan, available to all fulltime government employees at their 
option, pe rmits pa rticipant t o de fer a  por tion o f t heir s alary unt il f uture y ears.  T he pl an i s 
administered b y t he P ublic E mployees Benefit S ervices C orporation ( PEBSCO).  T he C ity 
does not contribute to this plan nor does it have any liability for this plan. 

 
C. Retirement Plan 

 
Plan Description 

 
The City provides pension benefits for all of its eligible employees through a nontraditional, 
joint contributory, hybrid defined benefit plan in the statewide Texas Municipal Retirement 
System (TMRS) an agent multiple-employer public employee retirement system.  T he plan 
provisions that ha ve be en a dopted b y t he C ity a re w ithin t he opt ions a vailable i n t he 
governing state statutes of TMRS. 

 
TMRS i ssues a  publ icly available comprehensive a nnual f inancial report t hat i ncludes 
financial statements and required supplementary information (RSI) for TMRS; the report also 
provides de tailed e xplanations of  t he c ontributions, be nefits a nd a ctuarial m ethods a nd 
assumptions used by the System.  T his report may be obtained by writing to TMRS, P. O. 
Box 149153, Austin, Texas  78714-9153 or by calling 800-924-8677; in addition, the report 
is available on TMRS’ website at www.TMRS.com. 

 
The pl an pr ovisions a re a dopted b y t he governing bod y of t he C ity, within t he opt ions 
available in  the s tate s tatutes governing TMRS.  Plan provisions for the City for 2011 a nd 
2010, were the same and were as follows: 

 

Plan Year Plan Year
2010 2011

Employee deposit rate 7% 7%
Matching ratio (City to employee) 2 to 1 2 to 1
Years required for vesting 5 years 5 years
Service retirement eligibility
   (expressed as age/years of service) 60/5, 0/20 60/5, 0/20
Updated service credit 100% repeating, 100% repeating,

transfers transfers
Annuity increase (to retirees) 70% of CPI 70% of CPI

repeating repeating  
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 IV. OTHER INFORMATION (Continued) 
 

C. Retirement Plan (Continued) 
 
Contributions 
 
Under t he s tate l aw governing T MRS, t he c ontribution r ate f or each  city i s d etermined 
annually by t he a ctuary, us ing t he P rojected U nit C redit a ctuarial cost m ethod.  T his r ate 
consists of  t he nor mal cost c ontribution r ate a nd t he pr ior s ervice c ost c ontribution r ate, 
which i s c alculated t o b e a  l evel percent of pa yroll f rom year t o year.  T he n ormal co st 
contribution r ate f inances t he por tion of  an a ctive m ember’s pr ojected be nefit a llocated 
annually; t he p rior s ervice contribution r ate a mortizes t he unf unded ( overfunded) a ctuarial 
liability ( asset) o ver t he a pplicable pe riod f or t hat c ity.  B oth t he nor mal c ost a nd pr ior 
service contribution rates include recognition of  the projected impact of  annually repeating 
benefits, such as Updated Service Credits and Annuity Increases. 
 
The City contributes to the TMRS plan at an actuarially determined rate.  Both the employees 
and the City make contributions monthly.  Since the City needs to know its contribution rate 
in advance for budgetary purposes, there is a one-year delay between the actuarial valuation 
that serves as the basis for the rate and the calendar year when the rate goes into effect.  The 
annual pension cost and net pension obligation/(asset) are as follows: 
 

2011 2010 2009

Annual required contribution (ARC) 782,362$    747,806$    607,604$    
Interest on net pension obligation 15,838     6,421       -         
Adjustment to ARC 13,104)(     5,228)(       -         
Annual pension cost (APC) 785,096   748,999   607,604   
Contributions made 670,281   623,444   521,986   
Increase (decrease) in NPO 114,815   125,555   85,618     
Net pension obligation/(asset), beginning 211,173   85,618     -         

Net pension obligation/(asset), ending 325,988$    211,173$    85,618$      

Contributions as a percentage of ARC 85.67%      83.37%      85.91%       
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 IV. OTHER INFORMATION (Continued) 
 

C. Retirement Plan (Continued) 
 

Actuarial Assumptions 
 

The required contribution rates for fiscal year 2011 were determined as part of the December 
31, 2008 a nd 2009 a ctuarial va luations.  A dditional i nformation a s of  t he l atest a ctuarial 
valuation, December 31, 2010, also follows: 
 
Actuarial valuation date 12/31/2008 12/31/2009 12/31/10 - prior to 12/31/2010 - 

restructuring restructured

Actuarial cost method Projected unit credit Projected unit credit Projected unit credit Projected unit credit
Amortization method Level percent of payroll Level percent of payroll Level percent of payroll Level percent of payroll
GASB 25 Equivalent single 28 years - 28 years - 27.1 years; 27.2 years;
   amortization period Closed period Closed period Closed period Closed period
Amortization period for 
   new gains/losses 30 years 30 years 30 years 30 years
Asset valuation method 10-year 10-year 10-year 10-year
Actuarial assumptions: smoothed market smoothed market smoothed market smoothed market
   Investment rate of return 7.50% 7.50% 7.50% 7.00%
   Projected salary increases Varies by age and service Varies by age and service Varies by age and service Varies by age and service
   Includes inflation at: 3.00% 3.00% 3.00% 3.00%

 
Funded Status 
 
In June 2011, SB 350 was enacted by the Texas Legislature, resulting in a restructure of the 
TMRS f unds.  T his legislation pr ovided f or t he actuarial va luation t o be  c ompleted, a s i f 
restructuring ha d oc curred on D ecember 31, 20 10.  In a ddition, t he a ctuarial a ssumptions 
were u pdated f or t he n ew f und s tructure, b ased o n an  act uarial ex perience s tudy t hat w as 
adopted b y t he T MRS Board a t t heir M ay 201 1 m eeting ( the r eview c ompared a ctual t o 
expected ex perience f or t he f our-year pe riod o f J anuary 1, 2006 t hrough December 31, 
2009).  For a  c omplete de scription o f t he c ombined i mpact o f t he l egislation a nd ne w 
actuarial assumptions, including the effects on TMRS city rates and funding ratios, please see 
the December 31, 2010 TMRS Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR). 
 
The funded s tatus as of  December 31, 2010, unde r the two separate actuarial valuations, i s 
presented as follows: 
 

Actuarial UAAL as a
Actuarial Actuarial Accrued Percentage of
Valuation Value of Liability Funded Unfunded AAL Covered Covered

Date Assets (AAL) Ratio (UAAL) Payroll Payroll

12/31/20101 11,983,685$     17,366,050$     69.0% 5,382,365$       3,927,117$     137.1%

12/31/20102 17,870,012    22,113,696    80.8% 4,243,684      3,927,117    108.1%

(1)   Actuarial valuation performed under the original fund structure.
(2)   Actuarial valuation performed under the new fund structure.
 

 
(continued) 

 



54 

 IV. OTHER INFORMATION (Continued) 
 

C. Retirement Plan (Continued) 
 

Funded Status (Continued) 
 

Actuarial va luations i nvolve e stimates of  t he va lue of  r eported a mounts a nd a ssumptions 
about t he pr obability of  e vents f ar i nto t he f uture.  Actuarially d etermined a mounts a re 
subject t o c ontinual r evision a s a ctual r esults a re c ompared t o pa st e xpectations a nd ne w 
estimates are made about the future. 
 
Actuarial calculations are based on t he benefits provided under the terms of the substantive 
plan in effect at the time of each valuation, and reflect a long-term perspective.  C onsistent 
with t hat pe rspective, a ctuarial m ethods a nd assumptions us ed i nclude t echniques t hat are 
designed to reduce short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value 
of as sets.  The S chedule of  F unding P rogress, pr esented as R equired S upplementary 
Information f ollowing t he n otes to  th e f inancial s tatements, p resents mu lti-year t rend 
information about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over 
time relative to the actuarial accrued liability of benefits. 
 

D. Other Postemployment Benefits 
 

Supplemental Death Benefits Fund 
 
The City also participates in the cost sharing multiple-employer defined benefit group-term 
life insurance plan operated by the Texas Municipal Retirement System (TMRS) known as 
the Supplemental Death Benefits Fund (SDBF).  The City elected, by ordinance, to provide 
group t erm l ife i nsurance c overage t o bot h c urrent a nd r etired employees.  T he C ity m ay 
terminate co verage u nder an d discontinue pa rticipation i n t he SDBF b y adopting a n 
ordinance before November 1 of any year to be effective the following January 1. 
 
The death benefit for active employees provides a lump sum payment approximately equal to 
the employee’s annual salary (calculated based on the employee’s actual earnings, for the 12-
month period preceding the month of death); retired employees are insured for $7,500; this 
coverage is an “other postemployment benefit,” or OPEB. 
 
The City contributes to the SDBF at a contractually required rate as determined by an annual 
actuarial valuation.  T he rate is equal to the cost of providing one-year term l ife insurance.  
The funding policy for the SDBF program is to assure that adequate resources are available 
to meet all death benefit payments for the upcoming year; the intent is not to pre-fund retiree 
term life insurance during employees’ entire careers. 
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 IV. OTHER INFORMATION (Continued) 
 

D. Other Postemployment Benefits (Continued) 
 

Supplemental Death Benefits Fund (Continued) 
 

The City’s contributions to the TMRS SDBF for the years ended 2011, 2010 and 2009 were 
$11,610, $10,786, and $9,030, respectively, w hich e qualed t he r equired c ontributions e ach 
year. 
 

Schedule of Contribution Rates 
(retiree-only portion of rates) 

 

Plan/ Required Actual Percentage
Calendar Contribution Contribution of ARC

Year Rate Rate Contributed

2011 0.04% 0.04% 100%
2010 0.05% 0.05% 100%
2009 0.05% 0.05% 100%  

 
E. Cost-sharing Arrangements 
 

Community Development Block Grants 
 
The City participates with Tarrant County in construction projects that are federally funded 
through annual C ommunity D evelopment B lock G rants t o t he C ounty.  T he g rant a mount 
available t o T arrant C ounty a nd a llocated t o t he 3 6th Year pr oject f or c urb, gutter a nd 
driveway replacement on Maple Park was $104,517.  P roject construction and engineering 
costs for the current fiscal year were $95,142 and $9,375, respectively. 
 

F. Contingent Liabilities 
 

Federal and State Programs 
 
Federal and state funding received related to various grant programs are based upon periodic 
reports detailing reimbursable expenditures made, in compliance with program guidelines, to 
the grantor agency. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(continued) 
 



56 

 IV. OTHER INFORMATION (Continued) 
 

F. Contingent Liabilities (Continued) 
 

Federal and State Programs (Continued) 
 

These pr ograms a re governed b y v arious s tatutory rules a nd r egulations of  t he grantors.  
Amounts r eceived a nd receivable unde r t hese various f unding pr ograms a re s ubject t o 
periodic audit and adjustment by the funding agencies.  To the extent, if any, the City has not 
complied w ith a ll t he rules a nd r egulations w ith r espect t o pe rformance, f inancial or 
otherwise, adjustment to or return of fund monies may be required. 
 
As i t pe rtains t o ot her matters of  c ompliance, i n t he opi nion of  t he C ity’s administration, 
there a re n o s ignificant c ontingent lia bilities r elating to  ma tters o f c ompliance a nd 
accordingly, no pr ovision has been made in the accompanying financial statements for such 
contingencies. 
 

G. Contracts and Commitments 
 

Wastewater Treatment 
 
On J une 8, 1987, t he C ity e ntered i nto a  30 -year a greement w ith th e City o f F ort W orth 
whereby Fort W orth a greed t o p rovide w astewater t reatment t o t he C ity.  The a greement 
allows th e C ity to  c onnect its  w astewater s ystem to  th e F ort W orth w astewater s ystem.  
Charges t o t he C ity a re based upon c ost of  s ervice r ate s tudies pe rformed b y i ndependent 
utility r ate c onsultants.  T his c ontract h as be en a mended v arious t imes dur ing t he years.  
Charges dur ing 2011  f or t he t reatment of  wastewater b y the C ity of F ort W orth w ere 
$338,376. 
 
Water Treatment 
 
The City entered into a 20-year agreement with the City of Fort Worth effective January 1,  
2011, through September 30, 2031, whereby Fort Worth agreed to provide treated to the City.  
Rates to purchase the water will be based upon a cost-of-service rate study conducted every 
three years by independent utility rate consultants.  Charges during 2011 for the purchase of 
treated water from the City of Fort Worth were $586,925. 
 
Transportation of Sewerage 
 
On M ay 13, 1986, t he C ity e ntered i nto a n a greement w ith t he C ity of H urst t o a llow 
sewerage t o b e m etered t o H urst t hen transported t hrough t he T rinity R iver A uthority 
Calloway Branch sewer line to the City of Fort Worth.  C harges to the City are based upon 
current sewer rates charged to Hurst by the Trinity River Authority and a $75.00 per month 
meter service charge.  Charges during 2011 from the City of Hurst were $87,093. 

 
 
 

(continued) 
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 IV. OTHER INFORMATION (Continued) 
 

H. Subsequent Events 
 

On November 8, 2011, the City Council authorized the issuance of Tax and Water and Sewer 
Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2011 in the amount of $3,110,000.  The bonds were dated 
November 1, 2011  a nd were i ssued t o r efund the C ity’s C ombination T ax a nd W ater a nd 
Sewer R evenue C ertificates of  O bligation, S eries 1998, a nd t he W aterworks a nd S ewer 
System Revenue Bonds, Series 2002.  T he bond proceeds will also be used to pay the costs 
incurred in connection with the issuance of the bonds.  Payments will be made semi-annually 
on each August 15 and February 15 beginning February 15, 2012. 

 
I. Change in Accounting Principles 

 
For f iscal year 2011, t he C ity has i mplemented Governmental Accounting S tandards Board 
(GASB) Statement No. 54, “Fund B alance R eporting a nd G overnmental F und T ype 
Definitions.”  GASB Statement No. 54 enhances the usefulness of fund balance information by 
providing c learer f und b alance cl assifications t hat can  b e m ore consistently applied and b y 
clarifying t he e xisting governmental f und t ype definitions.  T his s tatement e stablishes f und 
balance classifications that compromise a hierarchy based primarily on the extent to which a 
government is bound to observe constraints imposed upon the use of the resources reported in 
governmental funds.  The implementation of this s tatement resulted in  the City reclassifying 
fund balances of its governmental funds. 
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Variance With
Final Budget

Favorable
Original Final Actual (Unfavorable)

REVENUES
   Taxes:
      General property 2,003,151$        2,003,151$        1,978,741$        24,410)$(              
      Sales and use 1,495,070       1,495,070       1,904,776       409,706            
      Franchise 549,201          549,201          517,321          31,880)(              
   Fines and fees 433,233          433,233          370,819          62,414)(              
   Licenses and permits 129,843          129,843          274,680          144,837            
   Charges for services 258,546          258,546          253,010          5,536)(                
   Intergovernmental 132,518          132,518          105,961          26,557)(              
   Interest income 5,040              5,040              1,600              3,440)(                
   Miscellaneous 130,109          130,109          94,479            35,630)(              
            Total revenues 5,136,711       5,136,711       5,501,387       364,676            

EXPENDITURES
   Current:
      General government 345,394          345,394          424,446          79,052)(              
      Public safety 3,822,166       3,820,866       3,742,173       78,693              
      Public works 268,925          268,625          266,913          1,712                
      Culture and recreation 370,931          370,930          382,008          11,078)(              
      Parks and beautification 25,000            25,000            10,378            14,622              
      Community development 334,194          334,194          347,936          13,742)(              
   Capital outlay 23,698            23,698            149,192          125,494)(            
            Total expenditures 5,190,308       5,188,707       5,323,046       134,339)(            

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES 
   OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES 53,597)(            51,996)(            178,341          230,337            

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
   Proceeds from sale of general capital assets 37,768            37,768            23,209            14,559)(              
   Proceeds from insurance recovery -               -               50,146            50,146              
            Total other financing sources (uses) 37,768            37,768            73,355            35,587              

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 15,829)(            14,228)(            251,696          265,924            

FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING 2,074,822       2,074,822       2,074,822       -                  

FUND BALANCE, ENDING 2,058,993$        2,060,594$        2,326,518$        265,924$             

CITY OF RICHLAND HILLS, TEXAS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

GENERAL FUND

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2011

Budgeted Amounts
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Actuarial UAAL as a
Actuarial Actuarial Accrued Unfunded Percentage
Valuation Value of Liability Funded AAL Covered of Covered

Date Assets (ALL) Ratio (UAAL) Payroll Payroll

12/31/08 10,454,174$      15,341,093$     68.1% 4,886,919$     3,550,541$     137.6%
12/31/09 11,470,121     16,892,517    67.9% 5,422,396    3,898,255    139.1%

12/31/20101 11,983,685     17,366,050    69.0% 5,382,365    3,927,117    137.1%
12/31/20102 17,870,012     22,113,696    80.8% 4,243,684    3,927,117    108.1%

CITY OF RICHLAND HILLS, TEXAS

TEXAS MUNICIPAL RETIREMENT SYSTEM

SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS
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CITY OF RICHLAND HILLS, TEXAS 
 

NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2011 
 
 
 1. STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY 
 

A. Budgetary Information 
 
Annual budg ets a re adopted on a  ba sis c onsistent w ith g enerally a ccepted a ccounting 
principles f or t he G eneral F und, Richland Hills D evelopment C orporation, C rime C ontrol 
and P revention D istrict, R ed L ight E nforce, a nd H otel O ccupancy T ax S pecial R evenue 
Funds, D ebt S ervice Fund, and a ll t he C apital Projects F unds.  A ll a nnual a ppropriations 
lapse at fiscal year-end. 
 
At least 35 days prior to the beginning of the budget year, October 1, the City Manager will 
submit the proposed City budget for the ensuing year to the City Council.  F rom its date of 
submission, t he pr oposed budg et s hall be  a  pub lic r ecord.  The C ity C ouncil s hall hol d a  
public hearing on t he p roposed budget at l east 14 da ys be fore the beginning of  the budget 
year.  At least 10 days’ notice of such public hearing will be given by notice in the official 
newspaper.  After a hearing, the City Council may make such changes it deems proper in the 
proposed budge t a nd a dopt a  f inal budg et pr ior t o t he be ginning of  t he budg et year.  A ll 
budget hearings and actions on the budget shall be open to the public.  If a final budget is not 
adopted by the beginning of the budget year, the proposed budget of the City Manager shall 
be deemed to have been approved.  T he budge t shall go i nto e ffect on t he f irst da y of  t he 
budget y ear.  T he bud get m ay be  a mended dur ing t he year onl y after complying w ith t he 
notice pr ocedure c alled f or a bove f or a doption of  t he budg et.  T he C ity M anager i s 
authorized t o t ransfer b udgeted a mounts be tween l ine i tems a nd de partments w ithin a ny 
fund; however, any revisions that alter the total expenditures of any fund must be approved 
by the City Council. 
 
Encumbrances f or goods or  pur chased s ervices a re do cumented b y purchase or ders or  
contracts.  U nder T exas l aw, a ppropriations l apse a t S eptember 30, a nd encumbrances 
outstanding a t t he t ime a re t o be  e ither c anceled or  a ppropriately pr ovided f or i n t he 
subsequent year’s budget.  There were no outstanding encumbrances at the end of the year 
that were provided for in the subsequent year’s budget. 
 
The City’s budget was properly amended throughout the year as needed. 
 

B. Excess of Expenditures Over Appropriations 
 

The General Fund operating expenses exceeded appropriations by $134,339 primarily due to 
expenditures for the renovation of the l ibrary building in the capital outlay function.  Total 
capital outlay expenditures exceeded appropriations by $125,494. 
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COMBINING AND INDIVIDUAL 
FUND STATEMENTS AND SCHEDULES 



NONMAJOR 
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

 
 

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 
 
 

Special Revenue Funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources (other than 
major capital projects or proprietary funds) that are legally restricted to expenditures for specified 
purposes. 
 

Richland Hills Development Corporation – is a blended component unit which accounts for 
the promotion of infrastructure improvements, parks and park facilities and economic 
development within the City and the State of Texas in order to eliminate unemployment and 
underemployment and to promote and encourage employment and the public welfare of, for 
and on behalf of the City. 
 
Crime Control and Prevention District – is a blended component unit accounted for in a 
Special Revenue Fund.  The Crime District accounts for the proceeds of a .325 percent sales 
tax and crime reduction programs. 
 
Red Light Camera Enforce Fund – accounts for all revenues and expenditures related to red 
light cameras placed at intersections in the City. 
 
Hotel Occupancy Tax Fund – accounts for the proceeds of a 7 percent hotel occupancy tax 
and expenditures related to tourism. 
 
 
 

DEBT SERVICE FUNDS 
 
 
Debt Service Funds are used to account for the accumulation of resources for, and the payment of, 
general long-term debt principal and interest. 
 
 



CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS 
 
 
Capital Projects Funds account for all resources used for the acquisition and/or construction of capital 
facilities by the City, except those financed by the Enterprise Funds. 
 

Road and Street Fund – is used to account for intergovernmental revenue received from the 
Fort Worth Transportation Authority and improvements made to the City’s infrastructure. 
 
2001 Certificates of Obligation Fund – is used to account for the proceeds of the Certificates 
of Obligation and future expenditures for the Burns Road project. 
 
Oil and Gas Lease Fund – is used to account for the proceeds of the oil and gas lease bonus 
and future expenditures for capital projects. 
 
Capital Projects Fund – accounts for the purchase of equipment by the City. 
 
2011 PPFCO Fund – accounts for the 2011 Public Property Financial Contractual Obligation, 
which will be used to purchase an ambulance, patrol vehicles, service trucks, tractor and 
equipment. 
 
Safe Routes to School Fund – is used to account for the Safe Routes to School grant, which 
will be used to construct sidewalks at Richland Elementary School, Jack Binion Elementary 
School, and Richland Middle School. 
 
 
 
 
 



Total
Richland Hills Crime Red Light Hotel Special
Development Control Camera Occupancy Revenue
Corporation District Enforce Tax Funds

ASSETS
   Cash 393,011$       509,884$    -$        68,362$       971,257$     
   Receivables (net of allowances for uncollectibles):
      Taxes -            -        -       11,237      11,237      
      Accounts -            -        28,649    -          28,649      
      Intergovernmental 51,150        150,862   -       -          202,012    
   Due from other funds -            -        123,255  -          123,255    

            Total assets 444,161$       660,746$    151,904$   79,599$       1,336,410$  

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
   Liabilities:
      Accounts payable 1,164$           3,499$       25,959$     115$            30,737$       
      Due to other funds 9,205          40,252     -       43             49,500      
      Deferred and unearned revenue -            -        -       -          -          
            Total liabilities 10,369        43,751     25,959    158           80,237      

   Fund balances:
      Restricted 433,792      616,995   125,945  79,441      1,256,173 
      Assigned -            -        -       -          -          
            Total fund balances 433,792      616,995   125,945  79,441      1,256,173 

            Total liabilities and fund balances 444,161$       660,746$    151,904$   79,599$       1,336,410$  

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

SEPTEMBER 30, 2011

Special Revenues

CITY OF RICHLAND HILLS, TEXAS

NONMAJOR FUNDS
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Total
2001 Safe Capital Total

Debt Road Certificates of Oil and Capital 2011 Routes Projects Nonmajor
Service and Street Obligation Gas Lease Projects PPFCO to School Funds Funds

93,416$    6,536$      68,228$       149,608$   -$       29,805$   -$        254,177$   1,318,850$   

24,646   -       -          -        -      -      -       -       35,883       
-       -       -          47,816    -      -      -       47,816    76,465       
-       -       -          -        23,425  -      169,322 192,747  394,759     
-       -       -          -        -      -      -       -       123,255     

118,062$  6,536$      68,228$       197,424$   23,425$   29,805$   169,322$  494,740$   1,949,212$   

-$        -$        -$           -$         -$       -$       121,957$  121,957$   152,694$      
1,107     44          501           263         -      -      47,365   48,173    98,780       

24,646   -       -          34,245    -      -      -       34,245    58,891       
25,753   44          501           34,508    -      -      169,322 204,375  310,365     

92,309   6,492     67,727      162,916  -      29,805  -       266,940  1,615,422  
-       -       -          -        23,425  -      -       23,425    23,425       

92,309   6,492     67,727      162,916  23,425  29,805  -       290,365  1,638,847  

118,062$  6,536$      68,228$       197,424$   23,425$   29,805$   169,322$  494,740$   1,949,212$   

Capital Projects
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Total
Richland Hills Crime Red Light Hotel Special
Development Control Camera Occupancy Revenue
Corporation District Enforce Tax Funds

REVENUES
   Property taxes -$            -$         -$         -$            -$            
   Sales and use taxes 237,889      675,913   -        -           913,802     
   Hotel occupancy tax -           -        -        152,597     152,597     
   Fines and fees -           -        252,844   -           252,844     
   Intergovernmental -           -        -        -           -           
   Interest 458            756         -        76              1,290         
   Other -           -        -        -           -           
            Total revenues 238,347      676,669   252,844   152,673     1,320,533  

EXPENDITURES
   Current:
      Public safety -           513,195   320,313   -           833,508     
      Public works -           -        -        -           -           
      Community development 149,545      -        -        94,961       244,506     
   Capital outlay 51,549        -        22,852     -           74,401       
   Debt service:
      Principal -           -        -        -           -           
      Interest and fiscal charges -           -        -        -           -           
            Total expenditures 201,094      513,195   343,165   94,961       1,152,415  

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
   OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES 37,253        163,474   90,321)(     57,712       168,118     

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
  Proceeds from sale of capital assets -           -        -        -           -           
  Proceeds from bond issuance -           -        -        -           -           
   Transfers in -           -        -        -           -           
   Transfers out 133,006)(      -        -        -           133,006)(     
            Total other financing sources (uses) 133,006)(      -        -        -           133,006)(     

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES 95,753)(        163,474   90,321)(     57,712       35,112       

FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING 529,545      453,521   216,266   21,729       1,221,061  

FUND BALANCES, ENDING 433,792$       616,995$    125,945$    79,441$        1,256,173$   

CITY OF RICHLAND HILLS, TEXAS

NONMAJOR FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2011

Special Revenues

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
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Total
2001 Safe Capital Total

Debt Road Certificates of Oil and Capital 2011 Routes Projects Nonmajor
Service and Street Obligation Gas Lease Projects PPFCO to School Funds Funds

216,163$   -$        -$          -$        -$       -$        -$        -$          216,163$       
-       -       -         -       -      -       -       -         913,802      
-       -       -         -       -      -       -       -         152,597      
-       -       -         -       -      -       -       -         252,844      
-       115,579 -         -       -      -       278,414 393,993    393,993      
257        65          102           401        -      91           -       659          2,206          

-       -       -         97,349    -      -       -       97,349     97,349        
216,420  115,644 102           97,750    -      91           278,414 492,001    2,028,954   

-       -       -         -       -      -       -       -         833,508      
-       275 -         4,500 -      4,563 -       9,338       9,338          
-       -       -         -       -      -       -       -         244,506      
-       121,883 237           178,450  -      433,223  278,414 1,012,207 1,086,608   

331,000  -       -         -       -      -       -       -         331,000      
60,958    -       -         -       -      23,000    -       23,000     83,958        

391,958  122,158 237           182,950  -      460,786  278,414 1,044,545 2,588,918   

175,538)(  6,514)(     135)(           85,200)(    -      460,695)(  -       552,544)(    559,964)(      

-       -       -         -       -      17,500 -       17,500     17,500        
-       -       -         -       -      473,000 -       473,000    473,000      

133,006  -       -         -       -      -       -       -         133,006      
-       -       -         200,000)(  -      -       -       200,000)(    333,006)(      

133,006  -       -         200,000)(  -      490,500  -       290,500    273,000      

42,532)(    6,514)(     135)(           285,200)(  -      29,805    -       262,044)(    269,464)(      

134,841  13,006   67,862      448,116  23,425  -       -       552,409    1,908,311   

92,309$     6,492$      67,727$       162,916$   23,425$   29,805$     -$        290,365$     1,638,847$    

Capital Projects
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Variance
Favorable

Original Final Actual (Unfavorable)

REVENUES
   Sales and use tax 167,178$     167,178$     237,889$     70,711$            
   Intergovernmental 9,600        9,600        -          9,600)(            
   Interest income 1,034        1,034        458           576)(               
            Total revenues 177,812    177,812    238,347    60,535           

EXPENDITURES
   Current:
      Community development 68,630      68,630      149,545    80,915)(           
   Capital outlay 478,000    478,000    51,549      426,451         
            Total expenditures 546,630    546,630    201,094    345,536         

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
   OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES 368,818)(    368,818)(    37,253      406,071         

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES AND (USES)
   Transfers out 132,027)(    132,027)(    133,006)(    979)(               
            Total other financing sources and uses 132,027)(    132,027)(    133,006)(    979)(               

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 500,845)(    500,845)(    95,753)(      405,092         

FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING 529,545    529,545    529,545    -              

FUND BALANCE, ENDING 28,700$       28,700$       433,792$     405,092$          

Budgeted Amounts

SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

CITY OF RICHLAND HILLS, TEXAS

RICHLAND HILLS DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2011

65



Variance
Favorable

Original Final Actual (Unfavorable)

REVENUES
   Sales and use tax 519,913$       519,913$       675,913$       156,000$          
   Interest 557            557            756            199               
            Total revenues 520,470      520,470      676,669      156,199         

EXPENDITURES
   Current:
      Public safety 535,140      535,140      513,195      21,945           
            Total expenditures 535,140      535,140      513,195      21,945           

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 14,670)(        14,670)(        163,474      178,144         

FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING 453,521      453,521      453,521      -              

FUND BALANCE, ENDING 438,851$       438,851$       616,995$       178,144$          

Budgeted Amounts

CITY OF RICHLAND HILLS, TEXAS

CRIME CONTROL DISTRICT

SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2011
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Variance
Favorable

Original Final Actual (Unfavorable)

REVENUES
   Fines and fees 130,000 130,000 252,844$       122,844$       
            Total revenues 130,000      130,000      252,844      122,844      

EXPENDITURES
   Current:
      Public safety 104,739 104,739 320,313      215,574)(      
      Capital outlay 100,000 100,000 22,852        77,148        
            Total expenditures 204,739      204,739      343,165      138,426)(      

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 74,739)(        74,739)(        90,321)(        15,582)(        

FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING 216,266      216,266      216,266      -            

FUND BALANCE, ENDING 141,527$       141,527$       125,945$       15,582)$(        

Budgeted Amounts

CITY OF RICHLAND HILLS, TEXAS

RED LIGHT CAMERA ENFORCEMENT

SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2011
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Variance
Favorable

Original Final Actual (Unfavorable)

REVENUES
   Hotel occupancy tax 132,308$       132,308$       152,597$       20,289$         
   Interest income 350            350            76              274)(             
            Total revenues 132,658      132,658      152,673      20,015        

EXPENDITURES
   Current:
      Community development 92,789        92,789        94,961        2,172)(          
            Total expenditures 92,789        92,789        94,961        2,172)(          

EXCESS (DEFICIENCIES
   OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES 39,869        39,869        57,712        17,843        

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
   Transfers out 38,974)(        38,974)(        -           38,974        
            Total other financing sources (uses) 38,974)(        38,974)(        -           38,974        

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 895            895            57,712        56,817        

FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING 21,729        21,729        21,729        -            

FUND BALANCE, ENDING 22,624$         22,624$         79,441$         56,817$         

Budgeted Amounts

CITY OF RICHLAND HILLS, TEXAS

HOTEL OCCUPANCY TAX

SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2011

68
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Variance
Favorable

Original Final Actual (Unfavorable)

REVENUES
   Property taxes 194,558$       194,558$       216,163$       21,605$         
   Interest income 98              98              257            159             
            Total revenues 194,656      194,656      216,420      21,764        

EXPENDITURES
   Debt service:
      Principal 266,000      266,000      331,000      65,000)(        
      Interest and fiscal charges 59,996        59,996        60,958        962)(             
            Total expenditures 325,996      325,996      391,958      65,962)(        

EXCESS (DEFICIENCIES
   OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES 131,340)(      131,340)(      175,538)(      44,198)(        

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
   Transfers in 132,028      132,028      133,006      978             
            Total other financing sources (uses) 132,028      132,028      133,006      978             

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 688            688            42,532)(        43,220)(        

FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING 134,841      134,841      134,841      -            

FUND BALANCE, ENDING 135,529$       135,529$       92,309$         43,220)$(        

Budgeted Amounts

CITY OF RICHLAND HILLS, TEXAS

DEBT SERVICE FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2011
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Variance
Favorable

Original Final Actual (Unfavorable)

REVENUES
   Intergovernmental 116,990$       116,990$       115,579$       1,411)$(          
   Interest 147            147            65              82)(              
            Total revenues 117,137      117,137      115,644      1,493)(          

EXPENDITURES
   Public works -           -           275            275)(            
   Capital outlay 117,137      117,137      121,883      4,746)(          
            Total expenditures 117,137      117,137      122,158      5,021)(          

EXCESS (DEFICIENCIES
   OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES -           -           6,514)(          6,514)(          

FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING 13,006        13,006        13,006        -           

FUND BALANCE, ENDING 13,006$         13,006$         6,492$           6,514)$(          

Budgeted Amounts

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

CITY OF RICHLAND HILLS, TEXAS

ROAD AND STREET

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2011
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Variance
Favorable

Original Final Actual (Unfavorable)

REVENUES
   Interest -$            -$            102$             102$             
            Total revenues -           -           102            102            

EXPENDITURES
   Capital outlay 67,808        67,808        237            67,571        
            Total expenditures 67,808        67,808        237            67,571        

EXCESS (DEFICIENCIES
   OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES 67,808)(        67,808)(        135)(            67,673        

FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING 67,862        67,862        67,862        -           

FUND BALANCE, ENDING 54$               54$               67,727$         67,673$         

Budgeted Amounts

CITY OF RICHLAND HILLS, TEXAS

2001 CERTIFICATES OF OBLIGATION

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2011
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Variance
Favorable

Original Final Actual (Unfavorable)

REVENUES
   Interest 1,400$           1,400$           401$             999)$(             
   Other 300,000      300,000      97,349        202,651)(      
            Total revenues 301,400      301,400      97,750        203,650)(      

EXPENDITURES
   Public works -           -           4,500          4,500)(          
   Capital outlay 200,000      200,000      178,450      21,550        
            Total expenditures 200,000      200,000      182,950      17,050        

EXCESS (DEFICIENCIES
   OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES 101,400      101,400      85,200)(        186,600)(      

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
   Transfers out -           -           200,000)(      200,000)(      
            Total other financing sources (uses) -           -           200,000)(      200,000)(      

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 101,400      101,400      285,200)(      386,600)(      

FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING 448,116      448,116      448,116      -            

FUND BALANCE, ENDING 549,516$       549,516$       162,916$       386,600)$(      

Budgeted Amounts

CITY OF RICHLAND HILLS, TEXAS

OIL AND GAS LEASE

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2011
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Variance
Favorable

Original Final Actual (Unfavorable)

REVENUES
   Interest -$             -$             91$                91$                
            Total revenues -            -            91               91               

EXPENDITURES
   Capital outlay -            -            433,223      433,223)(      
   Interest and fiscal charges -            -            23,000        23,000)(        
            Total expenditures -            -            456,223      456,223)(      

EXCESS (DEFICIENCIES
   OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES -            -            456,132)(      456,132)(      

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
   Proceeds from bond issuance -            -            473,000      473,000      
            Total other financing sources (uses) -            -            473,000      473,000      

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE -            -            16,868        16,868        

FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING -            -            -            -            

FUND BALANCE, ENDING -$             -$             16,868$         16,868$         

Budgeted Amounts

CITY OF RICHLAND HILLS, TEXAS

2011 PPFCO

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2011
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Variance
Favorable

Original Final Actual (Unfavorable)

REVENUES
   Intergovernmental -$             -$             278,414$       278,414$       
            Total revenues -            -            278,414      278,414      

EXPENDITURES
   Capital outlay -            -            278,414      278,414)(      
            Total expenditures -            -            278,414      278,414)(      

EXCESS (DEFICIENCIES
   OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES -            -            -            -            

FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING -            -            -            -            

FUND BALANCE, ENDING -$             -$             -$             -$             

Budgeted Amounts

CITY OF RICHLAND HILLS, TEXAS

SAFE ROUTES TO SCHOOL

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2011
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Statistical Section 
(Unaudited) 

 

 
 

This part of the City of Richland Hills, Texas’ comprehensive annual financial report presents detailed 
information a s a  context f or unde rstanding what t he i nformation i n t he f inancial s tatements, not e 
disclosures, and required supplementary information says about the City’s overall financial health. 
 
 
 Page 
 Number 
 

Financial Trends 
These s chedules c ontain t rend i nformation t o he lp t he r eader 
understand h ow t he C ity’s f inancial p erformance has changed ove r 
time.  75 – 83  

 
Revenue Capacity 

These s chedules co ntain i nformation t o h elp t he r eader as sess t he 
factors affecting the City’s most significant local revenue source – tax 
revenue, as well as its ability to generate its property taxes. 84 – 89   

 
Debt Capacity 

These schedules p resent i nformation t o h elp t he r eader as sess t he 
affordability o f t he C ity’s c urrent l evels of  out standing de bt a nd t he 
City’s ability to issue additional debt in the future. 90 – 96  

 
Demographic and Economic Information 

These schedules o ffer demographics and economic indicators to he lp 
the r eader und erstand the e nvironment w ithin w hich t he C ity’s 
financial activities take place. 97 – 98  

 
Operating Information 

These s chedules contain i nformation a bout t he City’s ope rations a nd 
resources t o he lp the reader u nderstand h ow the C ity’s f inancial 
information relates to the services the City provides and the activities 
it performs. 99 – 101  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the comprehensive annual 

financial r eport f or th e r elevant year.  The C ity i mplemented S tatement 3 4 in  2 004; s chedules 
presenting government-wide information include information beginning in that year. 



2004 2005 2006

Governmental activities:
   Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 9,760,325$     10,116,134$   9,609,930$     
   Restricted 57,000        58,177        56,693        
   Unrestricted 4,947,499    4,364,948    4,303,817    

            Total governmental activities net assets 14,764,824$   14,539,259$   13,970,440$   

Business-type activities:
   Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 4,943,841$     5,382,901$     5,599,182$     
   Restricted 791,426      871,988      955,912      
   Unrestricted 1,418,343    1,113,198    1,092,985    

            Total business-type activities net assets 7,153,610$     7,368,087$     7,648,079$     

Primary government:
   Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 14,704,166$   15,499,035$   15,209,112$   
   Restricted 848,426      930,165      1,012,605    
   Unrestricted 6,365,842    5,478,146    5,396,802    

            Total primary government net assets 21,918,434$   21,907,346$   21,618,519$   

Note:

   The City began to report accrual information when it implemented GASB Statement 34 in fiscal year 2004.

CITY OF RICHLAND HILLS, TEXAS

NET ASSETS BY COMPONENT

LAST EIGHT FISCAL YEARS

Fiscal Year
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TABLE 1

2007 2008 2009 2010 2011

8,973,364$     8,565,062$     8,108,808$     8,215,829$     7,815,576$     
384,137      412,610      439,715      375,753      1,542,536    

4,765,358    4,888,559    5,273,862    4,153,765    2,564,977    

14,122,859$   13,866,231$   13,822,385$   12,745,347$   11,923,089$   

5,705,248$     5,945,512$     6,093,323$     6,194,852$     7,255,716$     
1,026,423    1,011,985    1,039,337    1,212,169    -            

413,272      212,675)(      18,269        290,156)(      1,170,660    

7,144,943$     6,744,822$     7,150,929$     7,116,865$     8,426,376$     

14,678,612$   14,510,574$   14,202,131$   14,410,681$   15,071,292$   
1,410,560    1,424,595    1,479,052    1,587,922    1,542,536    
5,178,630    4,675,884    5,292,131    3,863,609    3,735,637    

21,267,802$   20,611,053$   20,973,314$   19,862,212$   20,349,465$   

Fiscal Year
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2004 2005 2006
EXPENSES
   Governmental activities:
      General government 370,519$        457,179$        442,659$        
      Public safety 3,288,139    3,364,721    3,719,164    
      Public works 1,156,453    1,128,504    1,147,289    
      Culture and recreation 279,752       292,394       295,554       
      Parks and beautification 23,299         51,542         39,120         
      Community development 188,511       83,218         70,075         
      Interest on long-term debt 74,690         75,836         83,135         
            Total governmental activities expenses 5,381,363    5,453,394    5,796,996    

   Business-type activities:
      Water and sewer 2,835,131    2,989,931    3,139,909    
      Drainage utility 100,884       96,559         88,518         
            Total business-type activities expenses 2,936,015    3,086,490    3,228,427    

            Total primary government program expenses 8,317,378$     8,539,884$     9,025,423$     

PROGRAM REVENUES
   Governmental activities:
      Charges for services:
         General government 248,913$        297,003$        314,430$        
         Public safety 808,397       773,493       595,129       
         Public works -            -            -            
         Community development -            -            -            
      Operating grants and contributions 165,002       107,719       183,081       
      Capital grants and contributions 130,963       150,505       61,929         
            Total governmental activities program revenues 1,353,275    1,328,720    1,154,569    

   Business-type activities:
      Charges for services:
         Water and sewer 2,693,304    2,902,880    3,088,235    
         Drainage utility 151,488       154,060       152,743       
      Capital grants and contributions -            126,000       134,492       
            Total business-type activities program revenues 2,844,792    3,182,940    3,375,470    

            Total primary government program revenues 4,198,067$     4,511,660$     4,530,039$     

Note:
     The City begain to report accrued information when it implemented GASB Statement 34 in fiscal year 2004.

CITY OF RICHLAND HILLS, TEXAS

CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

Fiscal Year

LAST EIGHT FISCAL YEARS
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TABLE 2

2007 2008 2009 2010 2011

431,748$        381,991$        396,736$        409,627$        452,544$        
4,179,157    4,548,288    4,727,024    5,269,229    5,032,257    
1,203,362    1,277,037    1,445,582    1,339,330    1,151,899    

302,913       329,331       317,101       364,142       453,741       
40,783         43,290         46,457         26,670         21,182         

100,409       83,792         135,632       126,422       612,100       
92,682         91,450         82,847         74,760         56,979         

6,351,054    6,755,179    7,151,379    7,610,180    7,780,702    

3,472,363    3,519,155    3,564,422    3,904,845    3,845,749    
118,124       250,726       134,218       153,742       440,644       

3,590,487    3,769,881    3,698,640    4,058,587    4,286,393    

9,941,541$     10,525,060$   10,850,019$   11,668,767$   12,067,095$   

266,339$        257,878$        174,566$        189,645$        279,595$        
1,271,650    804,512       772,830       816,496       972,419       

-            -            -            -            34,245         
-            -            -            -            22,887         

152,616       179,182       164,926       230,056       268,290       
130,204       97,423         352,102       226,239       393,993       

1,820,809    1,338,995    1,464,424    1,462,436    1,971,429    

2,712,339    3,133,427    3,167,127    3,313,932    4,544,897    
155,034       177,406       662,405       691,018       738,144       

-            -            -            -            -            
2,867,373    3,310,833    3,829,532    4,004,950    5,283,041    

4,688,182$     4,649,828$     5,293,956$     5,467,386$     7,254,470$     

Fiscal Year

(continued)
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2004 2005 2006
NET (EXPENSE) REVENUES
   Governmental activities 4,028,088)$(    4,124,674)$(    4,642,427)$(    
   Business-type activities 91,223)(         96,450         147,043       
            Total primary government net expense 4,119,311)(    4,028,224)(    4,495,384)(    

GENERAL REVENUES AND OTHER CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
   Governmental activities:
      Taxes
         Property 1,651,585    1,706,980    1,772,300    
         Sales 1,380,471    1,456,326    1,601,495    
         Franchise 652,268       436,661       598,861       
         Hotel occupancy -            -            -            
      Investment earnings 41,932         76,521         136,546       
      Miscellaneous -            288,683       -            
      Transfers -            66,062)(         35,594)(         
            Total governmental activities 3,726,256    3,899,109    4,073,608    

   Business-type activities:
      Investment earnings 27,137         51,965         97,355         
      Miscellaneous -            -            -            
      Transfers -            66,062         35,594         
            Total business-type activities 27,137         118,027       132,949       

            Total primary government 3,753,393    4,017,136    4,206,557    

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS
   Governmental activities 301,832)(       225,565)(       568,819)(       
   Business-type activities 64,086)(         214,477       279,992       

            Total primary government 365,918)$(       11,088)$(         288,827)$(       

CITY OF RICHLAND HILLS, TEXAS

CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

Fiscal Year

(Continued)
LAST EIGHT FISCAL YEARS
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TABLE 2

2007 2008 2009 2010 2011

4,530,245)$(    5,416,184)$(    5,686,955)$(    6,147,744)$(    5,809,273)$(    
723,114)(       459,048)(       130,892       53,637)(         996,648       

5,253,359)(    5,875,232)(    5,556,063)(    6,201,381)(    4,812,625)(    

1,858,628    1,927,273    2,083,969    2,119,563    2,197,570    
2,067,016    2,457,930    2,262,356    2,210,327    2,593,770    

552,072       543,654       562,590       480,222       509,015       
-            -            52,079         121,561       152,597       

159,705       64,126         9,476           3,925           3,806           
61,441         166,573       938,837       151,306       97,145         
16,198)(         -            266,198)(       16,198)(         300,788)(       

4,682,664    5,159,556    5,643,109    5,070,706    5,253,115    

203,780       58,927         9,017           3,375           6,347           
-            -            -            -            5,728           

16,198         -            266,198       16,198         300,788       
219,978       58,927         275,215       19,573         312,863       

4,902,642    5,218,483    5,918,324    5,090,279    5,565,978    

152,419       256,628)(       43,846)(         1,077,038)(    556,158)(       
503,136)(       400,121)(       406,107       34,064)(         1,309,511    

350,717)$(       656,749)$(       362,261$        1,111,102)$(    753,353$        

Fiscal Year
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TABLE 3

2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011

General fund
   Reserved 73,927$              99,187$              64,074$              65,997$              70,206$              88,573$              94,104$              83,381$              959,203$            -$                  
   Nonspendable -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 830,477           
   Unassigned -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 1,496,041        
   Unreserved 2,825,718        2,356,934        2,385,941        2,343,951        2,511,373        2,753,628        2,789,037        2,483,768        1,115,619        -                 

         Total general fund 2,899,645$         2,456,121$         2,450,015$         2,409,948$         2,581,579$         2,842,201$         2,883,141$         2,567,149$         2,074,822$         2,326,518$         

All other governmental funds
   Reserved 37,111$              44,807$              54,928$              50,235$              49,069$              376,513$            403,585$            408,406$            351,107$            -$                  
   Restricted -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 1,615,422        
   Assigned -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 23,425             
   Unreserved, reported in:
      Special revenue funds 1,931,730        1,837,296        1,591,364        628,864           721,920           815,053           1,041,506        1,002,259        1,004,795        -                 
      Capital projects funds 791,091           146,531           132,004           543,732           306,243           780,342           209,354           1,033,429        552,409           -                 

         Total all other 
            governmental funds 2,759,932$         2,028,634$         1,778,296$         1,222,831$         1,077,232$         1,971,908$         1,654,445$         2,444,094$         1,908,311$         1,638,847$         

Fiscal Year

CITY OF RICHLAND HILLS, TEXAS

FUND BALANCES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
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TABLE 4

2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011

REVENUES
   Taxes 3,706,679$         3,671,817$         3,695,904$         3,607,405$         3,963,676$         4,420,262$         4,942,857$         4,945,924$         4,935,890$         5,683,400$         
   Fines and forfeitures 340,753           457,871           628,542           601,459           407,187           1,015,339        722,672           614,228           654,673           623,663           
   Licenses, permits, fees 70,216             67,451             93,345             89,062             109,134           135,319           136,745           69,108             111,859           274,680           
   Charges for services 159,498           128,366           157,989           270,299           285,603           249,631           237,077           237,184           240,425           253,010           
   Intergovernmental 477,463           289,046           295,965           258,224           182,962           168,050           166,444           426,644           382,703           499,954           
   Investment earnings 109,581           58,816             41,932             76,521             136,546           159,705           64,126             9,476               3,925               3,806               
   Other 60,540             72,626             64,393             378,990           73,952             105,921           231,634           984,144           194,319           191,828           

            Total revenues 4,924,730        4,745,993        4,978,070        5,281,960        5,159,060        6,254,227        6,501,555        7,286,708        6,523,794        7,530,341        

EXPENDITURES
   General government 324,296           354,734           321,629           421,849           535,853           339,869           338,417           358,134           378,811           424,446           
   Public safety 2,879,483        2,846,957        3,168,141        3,277,700        3,451,450        3,941,780        4,306,075        4,325,390        4,900,216        4,575,681        
   Public works 509,259           771,691           688,937           1,428,254        326,348           349,109           493,330           656,433           510,250           276,251           
   Culture and recreation 283,445           252,289           254,129           262,553           276,603           284,706           308,140           293,622           329,463           382,008           
   Parks and beautification 14,006             13,669             72,567             58,976             40,649             9,311               11,818             16,005             4,256               10,378             
   Community and developmen 76,482             39,791             184,174           78,523             68,552             91,984             75,688             154,213           197,391           592,442           
   Capital outlay 1,245,654        1,055,859        269,334           396,212           707,548           321,570           954,855           472,993           913,798           1,235,800        
   Debt service
      Principal 165,534           373,664           200,000           210,000           200,000           191,000           223,000           242,000           251,000           331,000           
      Interest 130,910           100,380           75,603             66,662             78,471             83,867             99,393             79,663             71,249             83,958             
      Bond issuance costs -                 -                 -                 11,401             12,069             13,500             -                 -                 -                 -                 

            Total expenditures 5,629,069        5,809,034        5,234,514        6,212,130        5,697,543        5,626,696        6,810,716        6,598,453        7,556,434        7,911,964        

(continued)

Fiscal Year

CITY OF RICHLAND HILLS, TEXAS

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
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TABLE 4

2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011

EXCESS OF REVENUES
   OVER (UNDER)
   EXPENDITURES 704,339)$(           1,063,041)$(        256,444)$(           930,170)$(           538,483)$(           627,531$            309,161)$(           688,255$            1,032,640)$(        381,623)$(           

OTHER FINANCING
   SOURCES (USES)
      Proceeds from sale of
         general capital assets 13,898             8,805               -                 700                   25,546             8,955               32,648             51,600             20,728             40,709             
      Proceeds from issuance
         of bonds 350,000           -                 -                 400,000           415,000           535,000           -                 -                 -                 473,000           
      Proceeds from insurance r -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 50,146             
      Operating transfers in 388,908           617,143           179,153           181,130           122,863           259,808           244,780           260,887           320,113           133,006           
      Operating transfers out 485,596)(           737,729)(           179,153)(           247,192)(           158,457)(           276,006)(           244,780)(           527,085)(           336,311)(           333,006)(           

            Total other financing
               sources (uses) 267,210           111,781)(           -                 334,638           404,952           527,757           32,648             214,598)(           4,530               363,855           

NET CHANGE IN
   FUND BALANCES 437,129)$(           1,174,822)$(        256,444)$(           595,532)$(           133,531)$(           1,155,288$         276,513)$(           473,657$            1,028,110)$(        17,768)$(             

DEBT SERVICE AS
   A PERCENTAGE   
   OF NONCAPITAL
   EXPENDITURES 6.76%                9.97%                5.55%                4.76%                5.58%                5.18%                5.77%                5.40%                5.02%                6.12%                

Fiscal Year

(Continued)

CITY OF RICHLAND HILLS, TEXAS

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
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TABLE 5

Hotel
Fiscal Property Sales Beverage Franchise Occupancy
Year Tax Tax Tax Tax Tax Total

2002 1,505,219$    1,578,938$    1,907$       620,615$   -$          3,706,679$    

2003 1,579,915   1,510,424   1,830      579,648  -             3,671,817    

2004 1,646,132   1,438,350   2,216      609,206  -             3,695,904    

2005 1,704,550   1,410,246   1,902      490,707  -             3,607,405    

2006 1,775,844   1,611,844   1,746      574,242  -             3,963,676    

2007 1,861,429   1,997,967   2,102      558,764  -             4,420,262    

2008 1,918,082   2,470,907   2,140      551,728  -             4,942,857    

2009 2,079,168   2,252,568   1,955      560,154  52,079        4,945,924    

2010 2,101,899   2,194,903   1,716      515,811  121,561      4,935,890    

2011 2,194,904   2,816,917   1,661      517,321  152,597      5,683,400    

CITY OF RICHLAND HILLS, TEXAS

GENERAL GOVERNMENTAL TAX REVENUES BY SOURCE

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS (UNAUDITED)
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TABLE 6

Less: Net Total
Fiscal Residential Commercial Industreial Other Personal Tax-exempt Taxable Direct
Year Property Property Property Property Property Property Value Tax Rate

2002 200,136,951$  70,805,838$    10,362,209$  3,393,872$  88,976,987$  16,577,000$  357,098,857$    0.417333$  

2003 212,954,732 72,288,710   10,362,209 4,668,596 88,393,600 16,568,803 372,099,044     0.417333   

2004 232,221,028 71,893,437   10,370,809 4,362,796 84,216,038 16,367,789 386,696,319     0.428441   

2005 238,701,345 74,988,130   10,289,818 3,687,521 75,910,560 16,398,666 387,178,708     0.436297   

2006 257,185,035 79,703,585   11,691,714 3,273,159 78,292,805 23,779,179 406,367,119     0.435898   

2007 267,292,330 76,414,116   9,490,948   3,081,828 86,566,380 24,127,523 418,718,079     0.442094   

2008 263,989,606 84,778,256   9,904,412   578,752    87,309,399 22,812,614 423,747,811     0.456700   

2009 277,842,821 88,909,432   10,479,108 272,405    95,675,055 25,027,659 448,151,162     0.459202   

2010 284,264,270 105,533,139 10,743,321 237,868    90,162,865 35,902,483 455,038,980     0.473042   

2011 268,570,340 114,245,698 10,064,358 507,056    73,756,974 35,562,818 431,581,608     0.518012   

Source: (1)  Tarrant Appraisal District

CITY OF RICHLAND HILLS, TEXAS

APPRAISED AND TAXABLE VALUE PROPERTY (1)

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Appraised Property Value
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TABLE 7

Birdville
Independent

Fiscal Debt School Tarrant Hospital Junior Total
Year Operations Service Total District County District College Levy

2002 0.379386$  0.037947$  0.417333$  1.569800$   0.274785$  0.234070$  0.106410$  2.602398$  

2003 0.375221 0.042112 0.417333 1.617000  0.272500 0.232400 0.139380 2.678613 

2004 0.388374 0.040067 0.428441 1.617000  0.292500 0.235400 0.139580 2.712921 

2005 0.398093 0.038204 0.436297 1.617000  0.272500 0.235397 0.139380 2.700574 

2006 0.398218 0.037680 0.435898 1.617000  0.272500 0.235397 0.139380 2.700175 

2007 0.401180 0.040914 0.442094 1.565000  0.217500 0.235397 0.139383 2.599374 

2008 0.398000 0.052670 0.450670 1.405000  0.264000 0.227897 0.139600 2.487167 

2009 0.408773 0.050429 0.459202 1.410000  0.264000 0.227897 0.137960 2.499059 

2010 0.423707 0.049335 0.473042 1.405000  0.264000 0.227897 0.137670 2.507609 

2011 0.466951 0.051061 0.518012 1.425000  0.264000 0.227897 0.137640 2.572549 

CITY OF RICHLAND HILLS, TEXAS

PROPERTY TAX RATES - DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTS

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

City of Richland Hills
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TABLE 8

Percentage Percentage
2011 of Total City 2001 of Total City

Taxable Taxable Taxable Taxable
Assessed Assessed Assessed Assessed

Taxpayer Nature of Business Valuation Rank Valuation (1) Valuation* Rank Valuation (1)

First Industrial, LP Real Estate/Commercial 12,020,694$         1       2.8%              8,036,986$        3       2.3%               
Southwestern Bell Utility 8,567,481          2       2.0%              13,696,685     1       3.8%               
CNN Churchill III Hotel 5,659,087          3       1.3%              -                - %               
Oncor  Electric Delivery Co. Utility 4,579,664          4       1.1%              3,717,398       8       1.0%               
Nuclear Logistics Inc. Retailer 4,115,122          5       1.0%              -                - %               
Stuart C Irby Company Retailer 4,044,592          6       0.9%              -                - %               
E L Baker Jr LTD Real Estate/Commercial 3,981,005          7       0.9%              -                - %               
Regency Raintree Apartments 3,775,000          8       0.9%              4,451,892       6       1.2%               
AHC Richland Hills Apartments 3,198,197          9       0.7%              -                - %               
Composites One LLC Retailer 2,662,489          10    0.6%              -                - %               
Enkei International Inc Retailer -                   - %              4,679,267       5       1.3%               
Plas-Tex Inc Retailer -                   - %              3,291,701       9       0.9%               
Freemeyer Industrial Retailer -                   - %              3,748,601       7       1.0%               
NH Texas Properties Ltd Real Estate/Commercial -                   - %              3,146,151       10    0.9%               
Carlyle/Dr Investors, LLC Real Estate/Commercial -                   - %              8,956,446       2       2.5%               
Cummins Utility Distributor -                   - %              6,146,538       4       1.7%               

Total assessed value of
   ten largest taxpayers 52,603,331        12.2%            59,871,665     16.8%             

Total assessed value of other taxpayers 378,978,277     87.8%            297,227,192   83.2%             

Total assessed value of all taxpayers 431,581,608$      100.0%          357,098,857$    100.0%           

Source:   Tarrant Appraisal District
               Taxpayers assessed on January 1, 2010 (2010 tax year for the 2010-2011 fiscal year).

Note:      (1) Calculated based on net taxable value.

2011 2001

CITY OF RICHLAND HILLS, TEXAS

TOP TEN TAXPPAYERS

CURRENT YEAR AND NINE YEARS AGO
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TABLE 9

Percent of
Current Percent Delinquent Total Tax Outstanding Delinquent

Fiscal Total Tax of Levy Tax Total Tax Collections Delinquent Taxes to
Year Tax Levy Collections Collected Collections Collections to Tax Levy Collections Tax Levy

2002 1,488,972$    1,457,801$    97.9%     22,151$      1,479,952$    99.4%          71,926$         4.8%          

2003 1,561,856   1,532,064   98.1%     27,069     1,559,133   99.8%          105,475      6.8%          

2004 1,644,836   1,603,413   97.5%     23,543     1,626,956   98.9%          122,599      7.5%          

2005 1,689,249   1,655,590   98.0%     27,702     1,683,292   99.6%          126,072      7.5%          

2006 1,751,452   1,723,421   98.4%     26,851     1,750,272   99.9%          121,009      6.9%          

2007 1,844,254   1,819,972   98.7%     19,966     1,839,938   99.8%          116,610      6.3%          

2008 1,910,234   1,879,312   98.4%     17,681     1,896,993   99.3%          129,927      6.8%          

2009 2,064,779   2,030,068   98.3%     22,357     2,052,425   99.4%          136,798      6.6%          

2010 2,134,498   2,086,380   97.7%     9,828)(       2,076,552   97.3%          162,118      7.6%          

2011 2,177,631   2,138,363   98.2%     29,056     2,167,419   99.5%          166,039      7.6%          

CITY OF RICHLAND HILLS, TEXAS

PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
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TABLE 10

2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010

Construction 3,549,586$       20,021,534$     22,892,652$     17,936,621$     20,794,398$     18,374,108$     23,881,380$     18,886,577$     11,828,234$     
Manufacturing 6,612,753      4,423,652      7,812,885      11,187,900    10,257,696    7,914,159      6,347,714      5,661,817      5,675,971      
Wholesale trade 15,105,514    21,497,139    19,761,013    29,854,627    38,193,847    41,068,220    50,674,366    38,372,556    43,096,545    
Retail trade 15,305,478    13,340,753    11,954,491    11,342,161    10,063,701    8,905,776      8,887,046      8,542,823      8,262,102      
Transportation/warehousing 4,095              2,377              8,706              12,063            7,006              3,389              -                8,824              5,502              
Information 1,430,793      1,619,087      790,851          2,118,919      513,669          67,028            1,085,520      5,565,666      6,666,544      
Real estate/rental/leasing -                -                -                10,319            9,732              11,003            40,147            39,202            175,225          
Professional/scientific/
   technical services 4,231,931      2,667,761      2,346,570      2,891,198      3,963,816      4,413,397      3,306,050      3,225,222      1,863,805      
Administrative/waste management/
   remediation services 17,968,990    41,394,904    36,258,379    24,200,832    5,720,616      44,681,341    41,635,997    43,055,087    43,444,315    
Educational services 2,178              -                83                   5,085              282                 459                 -                1,721              5,830              
Health care/social assistance -                -                -                -                1,761              72,425            85,876            28,975            13,583            
Arts/entertainment/recreation 18,664            85,447            -                -                23,821            32,869            9,816              -                -                
Accommodation/food services 6,247,519      6,162,115      5,881,429      5,476,129      5,520,323      5,855,259      5,918,261      5,800,883      5,661,702      
Other services 4,407,324      4,003,424      3,913,483      3,855,000      3,046,218      3,670,592      5,752,124      6,835,836      7,748,713      
Other 82,100            75,154            138,434          -                -                -                -                -                1,397,279      

Total 74,966,925$     115,293,347$   111,758,976$   108,890,854$   98,116,886$     135,070,025$   147,624,297$   136,025,189$   135,845,350$   

City direct sales tax rate 1.00% 1.00% 1.00% 1.00% 1.00% 1.00% 1.00% 1.00% 1.00%

Source:  Texas Comptroller of Public Accounts

Calendar Year

CITY OF RICHLAND HILLS, TEXAS

TAXABLE SALES BY CATEGORY

LAST NINE YEARS (UNAUDITED)
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Combination Public Combination
Tax and Property Tax and

General Revenue Finance Revenue
Fiscal Obligation Certificates Contractual Tax Lease/ Revenue Certificates Lease/
Year Bonds of Obligation Obligations Note Purchases Bonds of Obligation Purchases

2002 185,000$  1,285,000$   300,000$     -$        183,644$  2,000,000$  3,480,000$     -$           

2003 125,000 1,225,000  230,000    -       -       1,975,000 3,335,000    -          

2004 65,000   1,160,000  155,000    -       -       1,910,000 3,180,000    -          

2005 -       1,090,000  80,000      400,000 -       1,840,000 3,020,000    -          

2006 -       1,015,000  -          770,000 -       1,765,000 2,850,000    -          

2007 -       935,000     535,000    659,000 -       1,690,000 4,780,000    423,513    

2008 -       855,000     515,000    536,000 -       1,610,000 4,515,000    384,306    

2009 -       770,000     485,000    409,000 -       1,525,000 4,245,000    343,336    

2010 -       680,000     455,000    278,000 -       1,435,000 6,710,000    300,521    

2011 -       580,000     425,000    77,000   -       1,340,000 6,360,000    255,780    

Business-type ActivitiesGovernmental Activities

CITY OF RICHLAND HILLS, TEXAS

RATIOS OF OUTSTANDING DEBT BY TYPE

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

90



TABLE 11

Per Capita
Total Debt as

Government- Percent of
Wide Estimated Total Debt Per Capita Per Capita

Indebtedness Population Per Capita Income Income

7,433,644$    N/A N/A N/A N/A

6,890,000   N/A N/A N/A N/A

6,470,000   8,300          779.52        20,247      3.85%

6,430,000   8,300          774.70        20,247      3.83%

6,400,000   8,300          771.08        20,247      3.81%

9,022,513   8,300          1,087.05     20,247      5.37%

8,415,306   8,300          1,007.82     20,247      4.98%

7,777,336   8,300          931.42        20,247      4.60%

9,858,521   8,094          1,218.00     22,682      5.37%

9,037,780   7,800          1,158.69     22,682      5.11%

91



TABLE 12

Ratio of
Net Bonded Net

Gross Less Net Debt to Bonded
Fiscal Estimated Assessed Bonded Debt Service Bonded Assessed Debt Per
Year Population** Value *(1) Debt Funds Debt Value Capita

2002 8,500         357,098,857$  485,000$     37,111$       447,889$     0.14%      52.69$       

2003 8,132         372,099,044 355,000    44,807      310,193    0.08%      38.14      

2004 8,132         386,696,319 220,000    48,976      171,024    0.04%      21.03      

2005 8,300         387,178,708 480,000    50,235      429,765    0.11%      51.78      

2006 8,300         406,367,119 770,000    49,069      720,931    0.18%      86.86      

2007 8,300         418,718,079 1,194,000 75,409      1,118,591 0.27%      134.77    

2008 8,300         423,747,811 1,051,000 100,322    950,678    0.22%      114.54    

2009 8,300         448,151,016 894,000    132,211    761,789    0.17%      91.78      

2010 8,094         455,038,980 733,000    134,841    598,159    0.13%      73.90      

2011 7,800         431,581,608 502,000    92,309      409,691    0.09%      52.52      

*Source: Tarrant Appraisal District
**Source: North Central Texas Council of Governments

Note: (1) Excludes revenue bonds

CITY OF RICHLAND HILLS, TEXAS

RATIOS OF GENERAL BONDED DEBT ASSESSED VALUE

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

AND NET GENERAL BONDED DEBT PER CAPITA
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TABLE 13

Ratio of
Debt

Total Total Service to
Fiscal Interest Debt General Total General
Year Principal and Fees Service Expenditures (1) Expenditures

2002 165,534$      117,760$         283,294$     5,629,069$     5.03%         

2003 373,664     100,380        474,044    5,672,587    8.36%         

2004 200,000     75,603          275,603    5,234,514    5.27%         

2005 210,000     66,662          276,662    6,212,130    4.45%         

2006 200,000     78,471          278,471    5,697,543    4.89%         

2007 191,000     83,867          274,867    5,626,696    4.89%         

2008 223,000     99,393          322,393    6,810,716    4.73%         

2009 242,000     79,663          321,663    6,598,453    4.87%         

2010 251,000     71,249          322,249    7,556,434    4.26%         

2011 331,000     60,958          391,958    7,911,964    4.95%         

Note: (1) Includes general, special revenue, debt service, and capital projects funds.

CITY OF RICHLAND HILLS, TEXAS

RATIO OF ANNUAL DEBT SERVICE EXPENDITURES
FOR GENERAL BONDED DEBT TO GENERAL EXPENDITURES

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
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TABLE 14

Estimated
Share of

Estimated Direct and
Debt Percentage Overlapping

Outstanding Applicable Debt

City of Richland Hills 502,000$             100.000%  502,000$          

Total direct debt 502,000         

Birdville Independent School District 227,199,554     7.40%        16,812,767    
Tarrant County Junior College 27,327,139       0.66%        180,359         
Tarrant County Hospital District 58,565,000       0.66%        386,529         
Tarrant County 333,561,836     0.66%        2,201,508      

Total overlapping debt 19,581,163    

            Total direct and overlapping debt 20,083,163$     

Government Unit

CITY OF RICHLAND HILLS, TEXAS

COMPUTATION OF DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING DEBT

SEPTEMBER 30, 2011 (UNAUDITED)
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TABLE 15

Net Revenue
 Direct Available

Fiscal Gross Operating for Debt
Year Revenues (1) Expenses (2) Service Principal Interest Total Coverage

2002 2,908,087$     2,406,832$     501,255$      265,000$     131,971$     396,971$      1.26          

2003  2,927,497    2,393,652    533,845       170,000    272,333    442,333       1.21          

2004 2,871,929    2,458,949    412,980       220,000    222,484    442,484       0.93          

2005 3,108,905    2,616,366    492,539       230,000    213,775    443,775       1.11          

2006 3,343,333    2,060,334    1,282,999    245,000    204,527    449,527       2.85          

2007 2,944,485    2,889,517    54,968         309,678    225,955    535,633       0.10          

2008 3,184,647    2,833,896    350,751       384,207    284,618    668,825       0.52          

2009 3,175,814    2,865,189    310,625       395,971    269,079    665,050       0.47          

2010 3,316,466    3,158,012    158,454       417,814    252,796    670,610       0.24          

2011 4,552,311    3,092,824    1,459,487    439,741    235,405    675,146       2.16          

Notes: (1)

(2) Excludes depreciation

Debt Service Requirements

CITY OF RICHLAND HILLS, TEXAS

SCHEDULE OF REVENUE BOND COVERAGE

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Includes operating revenue, interest on investments, loss on sale and/or gain on disposal of property, plant and
equipment.
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TABLE 16
CITY OF RICHLAND HILLS, TEXAS

COMPUTATION OF LEGAL DEBT MARGIN

SEPTEMBER 30, 2011 (UNAUDITED)

Article XI, Section 5 of the State of Texas Constitution states in part:

"…no tax for any purpose shall ever be lawful for any one year, which shall exceed two and one-half percent of
the taxable property of such city."

As a home rule city, the City of Richland Hills is not limited by the law in the amount of debt it may issue. The
City's charter provides that general property taxes are limited to $1.50 per $100 of assessed valuation for general
governmental services including the payment of principal and interest on general obligation bonds.

The tax rate for fiscal year 2011 was established at $.518012 per $100 of assessed valuation based on 100% of
appraised value.
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TABLE 17

Median Per Capita
Estimated Household Personal School Unemploymen

Year Population Income Income Enrollment Rate

2004 8,132       43,377$         20,247$        22,449     3.8%           

2005 8,300       43,377          20,247       22,297     4.5%           

2006 8,300       43,377          20,247       22,482     4.2%           

2007 8,300       43,377          20,247       22,488     3.9%           

2008 8,350       43,377          20,247       21,926     5.8%           

2009 8,350       43,377          20,247       22,505     8.0%           

2010 8,094       46,918          22,682       22,803     8.0%           

2011 7,800       46,918          22,682       22,803     7.8%           

Source: U. S. Census Bureau

North Central Texas Council of Governments

Texas Workforce Commission

Birdville ISD

   Note: Information unavailable for years prior to 2004

CITY OF RICHLAND HILLS, TEXAS

DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC STATISTICS

LAST EIGHT FISCAL YEARS
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TABLE 18

Percentage of Percentage of
Number of Total City Number of Total City

Name of Company Nature of Business Employees Rank Employment Employees Rank Employment

Birdville ISD (3 schools) Independent School District 178          1     3.5%             150        2     1.9%               
Harris Packing Corrugated boxes 135          2     2.6%             -       - %               
Lexington Place Nursing and
   Rehabilitation Services Nursing and personal care 104          3     2.0%             -       - %               
Nuclear Logistics Chemical Engineering Services 100          4     2.0%             -       - %               
City of Richland Hills Municipality 84            5     1.6%             81          8     1.0%               
Richland Hills Nursing Home Nursing and personal care 73            6     1.4%             85          9     1.1%               
Royal Bath Plastic Plumbing Fixture Mfg. 72            7     1.4%             -       - %               
TrugreenChemlawn Landscape and Horticulture 60            8     1.2%             
Alterra Health Care Corporation Nursing and personal care 60            9     1.2%             65          10   0.8%               
Atlantic Air Heating and air conditioning 

   equipment 55            10   1.1%             -       - %               
Dyna Ten Company Plumbing, heating, air conditioning -         - %             275        1     3.5%               
Nesbitt Building Maintenance, Inc. Cleaning, maintenance service -         - %             125        3     1.6%               
Hamilton Form Company Industrial machinery and equipment -         - %             100        4     1.3%               
Security Link Business services, miscellaneous -         - %             100        5     1.3%               
Harris Packaging Corrugated boxes -         - %             90          6     1.1%               
Dynamo Limited Video games manufacturer -         - %             85          7     1.1%               

921          18.0%           1,156     14.7%             

Sources:   City records
                 North Central Texas Council of Governments

CITY OF RICHLAND HILLS, TEXAS

PRINCIPAL EMPLOYERS

CURRENT YEAR AND NINE YEARS AGO

2011 2001
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TABLE 19

Function/Program 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011

Police
   Physical arrests 702 699 621 683         500         503         597         542          
   Number of law violations 555 470 271 539         3,396      3,885      3,511      3,693       

Fire
   Number of fire runs 595         569         475         613         612         541         543         480          
   Number of EMS runs 1,064      1,252      897         807         845         813         920         889          

Public Works - Streets
   Street resurfacing (miles) 0.5            0.6            0.5            0.3            0.3            0.2            1.4            23.0           
   Potholes repaired 130         132         128         134         118         123         123         184          

Public Works - Water/Wastewater
   New connections 293         374         396         477         468         453         414         21            
   Water main breaks 22           19           24           23           26           25           43           18            
   Average daily consumption
      (thousand of gallons) 893         1,023      831         806         925         921         836         955          
   Peak daily consumption
      (thousand of gallons) 0.976        1.13          1.43          1.22          1.80          1.61          1.552        1,670.000  
   Average daily sewer treatment
      (thousand of gallons) 991         1,120      977         1,381      902         880         1,499      688          

Library
   Volumes collection 37,042   38,858   38,476   38,721   39,393   37,954   37,562   41,310     
   Total volumes borrowed 48,300   45,816   41,544   35,004   40,056   42,288   36,398   39,208     

Source:  Various City departments

Information unavailable for years prior to 2004

CITY OF RICHLAND HILLS, TEXAS

OPERATING INDICATORS BY FUNCTION/PROGRAM

LAST EIGHT FISCAL YEARS

Fiscal Year
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TABLE 20

Function/Program 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011

Police
   Stations 1        1        1        1        1        1        1        1          
   Patrol units 10      10      11      11      11      11      11      11        

Fire
   Stations 1        1        1        1        1        1        1        1          
   Fire trucks 2        2        2        2        2        2        2        2          
   Ambulances 1        1        1        1        1        1        1        1          

Public Works - Streets
   Streets (miles) 43.51 43.51 43.51 43.51 43.51 43.51 43.51 43.51   
   Street lights 462    462    462    462    462    462    462    462      
   Traffic signals 9        9        9        9        9        9        9        9          

Public Works - Water/Wastewater
   Water mains (miles) 47      47      47      47      47      47      47      47        
   Fire hydrants 350    350    350    350    350    350    350    350      
   Storage capacity
      (thousand of gallons) 2,360 2,360 2,360 2,360 2,360 2,360 2,360 2,360   
   Sanitary sewer (miles) 60      60      60      60      60      60      60      60        
   Storm sewers (miles) 2.5       2.5       2.5       2.5       2.5       2.5       2.5       2.5         

Culture and Recreation
   Parks 4        4        4        4        4        4        4        4          
   Parks acreage 12.1     12.1     12.1     12.1     12.1     12.1     12.1     12.1       
   Community center 1        1        1        1        1        1        1        1          
   Playgrounds 3        3        3        3        3        3        3        3          

Source:  Various City departments

CITY OF RICHLAND HILLS, TEXAS

CAPITAL ASSET STATISTICS BY FUNCTION/PROGRAM

LAST EIGHT FISCAL YEARS
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TABLE 21

Function/Program 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011

General government
   Administration 5            5            5            5            6            6            6            6            6            6            
   City secretary 1            1            1            1            1            1            1            1            1            1            
   Community development 3            3            3            3            2            2            2            2            3            3            
   Economic development 1            1            1            1            -       -       -       1            1            1            
   Animal services 2            2            2            2            2            2            2            2            2            2            

Public safety
   Police 26          26          27          27          29          29          29          29          29          30          
   Fire 17          17          17          17          17          17          17          17          17          16          
   Municipal court 3            3            3            3            3            3            3            3            3            2            

2            
Streets 3            3            3            3            2            3            3            3            3            -       

Culture and recreation
   Library 7            7            7            7            7            7            7            7            7            7            
   Community center 1            1            1            1            1            1            1            1            1            1            

Water and sewer 10          10          10          10          10          10          10          10          10          10          

Drainage 2            2            2            2            2            2            2            2            2            3            

            Total 81          81          82          82          82          83          83          84          85          84          

Fiscal Year

CITY OF RICHLAND HILLS, TEXAS

FULLTIME EQUIVALENT CITY GOVERNMENT EMPLOYEES
BY FUNCTION/PROGRAM

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
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REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING 
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT 
OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH 

GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 
 
To the Honorable Mayor and 
   Members of City Council 
City of Richland Hills, Texas 
 
 
 We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type 
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Richland Hills, 
Texas, as of and for the year ended September 30, 2011, which collectively comprise the City’s basic 
financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated March 31, 2012.  We conducted our audit 
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the 
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States. 
 
 
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 
 
 Management of the City of Richland Hills, Texas is responsible for establishing and maintaining 
effective internal control over financial reporting.  In planning and performing our audit, we considered 
the City of Richland Hills’ internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing our auditing 
procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control over financial 
reporting.  Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control 
over financial reporting. 
 
 Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose 
described in the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in 
internal control over financial reporting that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies or material 
weaknesses and therefore, there can be no assurance that all deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or 
material weaknesses have been identified.  However, as described in the accompanying Schedule of 
Findings and Questioned Costs, we identified certain deficiencies in internal control over financial 
reporting that we consider to be material weaknesses. 
 
 A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or 
detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis.  A material weakness is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material 
misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a 
timely basis.  We consider the deficiencies described in the accompanying Schedule of Findings and 
Questioned Costs to be material weaknesses, 2011-1 through 2011-4. 
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Compliance and Other Matters 
 
 As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City of Richland Hills’ financial 
statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain 
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have 
a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts.  However, providing an 
opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do 
not express such an opinion.  The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other 
matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. 
 
 We noted certain matters that we reported to management of the City of Richland Hills in a 
separate letter dated March 31, 2011. 
 
 The City of Richland Hills’ responses to the findings identified in our audit is described in the 
accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs.  We did not audit the City’s responses and, 
accordingly, we express no opinion on them. 
 
 This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, City Council, others 
within the entity, and federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and 
should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 
 

 
 
 
 
March 31, 2012 
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CITY OF RICHLAND HILLS 
 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 
 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2011 
 
 
 
Item 2011-1:                               Security of Signature Stamp 

 
Condition:        During P BH’s w alkthrough o f c ontrols f or M unicipal Cour t, 

PBH not ed t hat j udgments f or dismissals a nd j udgments i n 
which the defendant pleads guilty are stamped with the judge’s 
signature. Upon further review, PBH noted the signature stamp 
is located in the marshal’s off ice unsecured. The marshal has 
access t o t he municipal co urt s ystem an d all c ases as  h e 
collects payment when the municipal court clerk i s out  of the 
office. 

 
Criteria

 

: Signature stamps should be properly safeguarded with limited 
access to personnel. 

Cause: During court, the volume of signatures necessary requires the 
use of a stamp which is used in the judge’s presence. 

 
Effect: Unauthorized us e of  t he s ignature s tamp c an re sult in 

fraudulent activity 
 
Recommendation: PBH recommends t he s ignature s tamp s hould be  ke pt i n a  

secured l ocation w ith l imited access by  off ice pe rsonnel. A 
signature s tamp should only be  available to the person whose 
signature i s on t he s tamp. T his control w ill h elp pr event 
unauthorized use of the signature stamp for court documents. 

 
Management’s Response:      The City agreed that procedures should be implemented so to 

mitigate unauthorized use of judge’s signature stamp. 
 
Contact Person Responsible 
   for Corrective Action: Barbara Mann, Finance/Accounting Manager 
 
Anticipated Completion Date: September 30, 2012 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(continued) 
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CITY OF RICHLAND HILLS 
 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 
(Continued) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2011 
 
 
 
Item 2011-2:                               Purchase Order Use 

 
Condition:        Purchase ord ers a re no t being us ed t hroughout t he Ci ty. P er 

adopted purchasing pol icy, a ll purc hases of $100 a nd u p 
generally require a purchase order. 

 
Criteria

 

: Proper re view of  re quested pur chases h elps pre vent 
unauthorized purchases and misuse of funds. 

Cause: In the absence of a purchasing department or purchasing agent, 
individual departments are in charge of their own purchasing. 

 
Effect: Misuse of  f unds, f raudulent activity c an go unde tected f or a 

period of time 
 
Recommendation: PBH re commends purc hase orde rs be  used on a c onsistent 

basis for purchases of $100 a nd up per the purchasing policy. 
PBH also recommends finance to review and approve purchase 
orders prior to purchase for budgeted funds and reasonableness 
of purchase. 

 
Management’s Response:      The Ci ty a greed t hat pr ocedures s hould be  using purc hase 

orders to deter misuse of funds. 
 
Contact Person Responsible 
   for Corrective Action: Barbara Mann, Finance/Accounting Manager 
 
Anticipated Completion Date: September 30, 2012 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(continued) 
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CITY OF RICHLAND HILLS 
 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 
(Continued) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2011 
 
 
Item 2011-3:                               Segregation of Duties 
 

Condition:        During PBH’s walkthrough of controls over accounts payable, 
PBH not ed s ome areas i n w hich prope r s egregation of  dut ies 
can be improved: 

 
1. The accounting clerk prepares all deposits for the city and 

takes in payments for the utility department as needed. 
 

2. The accounting manager who makes all entries to the GL 
has th e a bility to  ta ke in  p ayments f or th e u tility 
department. 

 
3. The accounting manager prints all checks and also has the 

ability to input new vendors. 
 
Criteria

 

: An e ssential element of any pre ventive c ontrol s ystem is a 
segregation of  dut ies i n s uch a  m anner s o t hat no s ingle 
individual could pe rpetrate a n e rror and conceal i t w ithout 
being discovered on a timely basis. 

Cause: Due to the size and nature of the entity, proper segregation of 
duties can be difficult to achieve.   

 
Effect: Without proper segregation of duties, the City is increasing its 

exposure to fraud risk. 
 
Recommendation: For t he prot ection of  t he Ci ty a nd t he City’s pe rsonnel, PBH 

recommends: 
 

1. The accounting clerk, who prepares all deposits, should not 
accept payments from customers. 

 
2. The accounting manager, who posts a ll entries to the GL, 

should be removed from the cash handling process. 
 

3. Access t o i nput ne w vendors s hould be  l imited t o t he 
accounting clerk. 

 
Management’s Response:      The Ci ty a greed that policies s hould be  implemented t o 

improve segregation of duties and decrease exposure to risks. 
 
Contact Person Responsible 
   for Corrective Action: Barbara Mann, Finance/Accounting Manager 
 
Anticipated Completion Date: September 30, 2012 

 
(continued) 
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CITY OF RICHLAND HILLS 
 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 
(Continued) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2011 
 
 
Item 2011-4:                               Capital Assets 

 
Condition:        A listing of capital assets and related accumulated depreciation 

should be  m aintained by  t he Ci ty’s m anagement t o ensure 
accurate i nformation i s available f or f inancial r eporting i n 
accordance with generally accepted accounting standards. 

 
Criteria

 

: A listing of capital assets and related accumulated depreciation 
was a vailable f rom t he pri or year a uditors, b ut w as not  
available from the City’s management. 

Cause: The City re lied on  t heir previous a uditors t o m aintain their 
capital asset listing. 

 
Effect: A listing of capital assets and related accumulated depreciation 

was not  maintained by  t he Ci ty’s m anagement t o t hroughout 
the f iscal year t o ensure accurate information i s available for 
financial re porting i n accordance w ith g enerally a ccepted 
accounting standards. 

 
Recommendation: The City should implement procedures to ensure a capital asset 

listing is  maintained by the City’s management. Additionally, 
an i nventory of  c apital assets s hould b e pe rformed a t l east 
every two years and reconciled to the capital asset listing.   

 
Management’s Response:      The City agreed that it should be keeping track of capital assets 

and will implement procedures to do so going forward. 
 
Contact Person Responsible 
   for Corrective Action: Barbara Mann, Finance/Accounting Manager 
 
Anticipated Completion Date: September 30, 2012 
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